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(Nikko AM Offshore Funds —DoubleLine Total Return Fund)

(Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited)

KY1-1104
309GT
(P.0. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands)

03 6775 1458

2019 28 UFJ 107.79
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Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited
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2017 28
2017 28
DoubleLine Capital LP
)
2018 2003 26
)
2018
() 2019
2019 480,000 5,174
107.79 480,000 107.79
1,000,000 1,000,000 779
)
2003 26
2009 27
)
2019
EC2Y 5AD 480,000 100.00
Nikko AM Global Holdings (1 London Wall, London EC2Y 5AD, United
Limited Kingdom)

2018
2019

5/192



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1925
50
150
2018
2018
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
2019
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA

CIMA

6/192



~A A A A A A

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

2018

2018
CIMA

20

7/192

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

2018

CIMA

CIMA



8/192

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA



(

(

)

)

26

EDINET

EDINET

198

CIMA
CIMA
CIMA

CIMA
CIMA

9/192

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

JSDA

CIMA
CIMA
CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA
CIMA
CIMA CIMA
CIMA
50
SEC
NRSRO
NRSRO

10

10/192



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

11/192



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

F-F AVARAFRAVF 74— (C1O) |

el F—F AAL—F 12T 3718 (cOOT1) |
vIn&3on w0 | (=M | (AT | [ Fv7 (8=t [+~
A ST WP amsm || Emsm || amsm || wmsm

[ FL—Froomm )

; PEEa Erast OiEiE REL. TIRREL
-y ( EEEHOEE BLIFE RS OEE A ERTL PRePE R \\\
g 7. (SEEH)
¥ CEREE GHAEBICRIA
T o BEERSOATICE 55 @5 W TEAE 30 002 it (@ ST - ST
[ EESHOEE ) B B4R A ok e |1 TIED CEREREOEN RS~ NHEER
) AuernERAERELET. LUFEIRSIERE MRS 8
e
| mmo | | |/ vzzem 50
5 = D BT OHAF SAELE [ FAERENER
Z Sk =% Fh Fh GER A TS T (55:52E)
; 2P FEvt—ie— | ciE
o w8 FTx Utomes . wmm o | BoRFrUSEER EELIT. B T & | CRE T 50E A URS.
’ - B AOOEESLFEDA
JCHEEEDS | ki
= . B FSE 4% OSF i 534K
- TR . MITHEAITELT TR z
RELYILG DR, Rk "R 'f'?'ﬁ‘filﬂﬁﬁff
H Y ORE 4
| | FeraroRE & j
5 F L—7 1 52 BIMEEAS ORENE L _
\J [ EF#T O BEBMTOIOFZICAINEES:
\ #HITLI T,
v
WU e T uRSEEEAS )
SERERICOL TER AT -7 || GERUAS IS T ISR L
2 AW 5FAL OB R AT

HE o

2019

12/192



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000O0oonognognoOonod(e27078)
OooOooooOoooooooooboood

< J)L—-THEE>

EREEREE  SRARES

FITNSA = F U RFEA T P =]

Ee Ho—/0L- 20T eok ,
ikt 1YTSANSFr | | FROpTreoLusy| WS FOr—vay l’“" i
pEE— U BRI WREMS S0k
REEFIIS 20-10 | NE-T ek
Y
BWE— 5T ERIS ne

FTNSA AN —2aril- 2S5 F5—

|- AT F— 015 Yz T
YUa—vay| |H#-EX i Db—savieds | | TEetvh m| I””ﬂz g
TRY A
REP 54T U WAL u=Fduds [ oroAEE s AW
mESMR [ vEx #& e
ibmedt JvFS4 7R Lk wie
T e o i et S o IT A #2332 i L
L= S F - TR AR
-
B —E T I g
SrukE

2019

13/192



15
12 24

0.01

15

0.01

15

14/192

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.001

0.001



15

15/192

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

BRI EHBIA
IRESRRICH T SEEER

eSERE. EESORNBSBEED. SREROREENSTILONETOT. JESNZILONZE. FO
ﬁﬁﬁ§ﬂ1D§PDﬁHEMHHTﬂD§TD

IR CRARE

SEEEO 77 /EORmISFOMAMREICE TR, LIFOESD  AicE O—8LL I~ TH, REMICIE
TAO—ELRELICIEN T WS HSHOET.COBS, METAO—EILRLITEYET 8 b0kEE
LCHERROMRELDET P/ FCHAEOERPRICED. SEEEHLD 1 OSCOHHAEHED
i EAOhhED S BESEERT T .

R o HAHO SHicis

R 2 4 Frthl v A EE LD
10% 70 10% =0
Wl U

*B AT FESE (A REEEN A, FESE (HEFE) Ak EsLTRRERLIE0DET.
VR CHT MR T A ROI I LOREL e MOt

SHEE (. HEMMBICRE LRBEEH A TRDNABES NS0 F T, ZONE, HEHRMMICHRS
HEBEH (HEE)ICHITD ONOEREDEIE. NEOSRBMICEIHEREROBEEHANT
TEIDIEICHEDET . Fe, ZREONKER, BFLEHEMMICEII 2 77V FORGRETRTEOTIE
BOEL A AR, FEEEEOERNSADOSEREBFTOMMEVVET. |

ﬂmmﬂummvnatﬂ

10508k |

105081
"~.!n.4nuem_
&> >
REOSEENE S HEsEEmI AEOSEMEI MBSEEEC  AEEemi
* ®
L pb7- =] .% I«i{ﬂﬂiﬂﬂ Ilﬂmﬂ EEEIE { :
| () iSRRI E U RELIA 50, 058K L ERDINT | | i8) MISHEMRICE LGB 550 SR KL ERDNT |

#REER. FrPOSREFIHC R IEELONET. SESHICDWVTIE, ##E’*TﬁETﬂJ’E SERCAL,
# PRI A=C R0, RO A ERET | D20HEe BErrl Y SO TRB0FFAOTOREOESL.

16/192



@

)

©

(D

©)

®

)
Q)

™
@

)

15

25

10

12

50

JSDA

20
48 12

120

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

50 23

10

10
35

VaR
80

17/192



18/192

21

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

12



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2007 - 2008

19/192



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

20/192



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

21/192



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

22/192



FX

23/192

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FX



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

24/192



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MRS )
B —
LS
A7 F IR
)25 H/EBL EgEg
ﬁ ﬁ
B/ B/
e LB
B it i 2 FiEE il
) 2 ERY O 051 7 AR S T
L3 57— TR ety LR IEEMm
o e Rl e L kb W
FZAAT
[ HR 2925k J BFs Y

A
S AL

v

2 PR ]

2019

25/192



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000O0oonognognoOonod(e27078)
OooOooooOoooooooooboood

KEW(EBR)ZSA
F7/EEMDINENEREI SALOEBROLR
l;llziﬁgl (TP 201 753ARE) (2014578-2019568) () (201 478201 556H) Ht{:‘f:l}
25 |
o P — SRS EEE W
B0 be--=--1 frm e e s e BAam | 20 |4 = D yEDEMIER (SN | —~ &0
L N-NE
&0 e e s L G s L i s 4 an
A0 == 10 == - 1 40
20 e e — 20
0 0 4 L - . e !
=20 SRR PRSI LE.- .,
=40 —40
JFUE BES GREmY BREL B cumi HEnR 201487R 2005E7R 20168 TH 2017578 2018%7RH
|: FrRUEAMOERNEEESS A OFEERESE. ] 350 0 L (| R TR D T OHT 7
ERRARER G UM ER (Y s R @, 20 PRI RFOHEEERTESLLT
ERIELTLET,

| F7] Bk [FRE ESERTABMTAEN . po s R AR REEES LU NNER(ERFCS0E

PO | 1w 7O0M] ST SO%| 076l 07K 04%)  mig amomE®) .S (M) EBRELE SOSUTIHE
WA | S2%) 27.1%] 235%) 41Sk) 305%| 93| 177%  LiEm tOBOTE), EEORRRGES SUEEORREGE
Bl | —1.1%)-13.7%] - 12.8%|-23.1%| —15.9%] —6.5%]—21.5% BT L EER T R R S EE ST,

w PR TPy RERRNLEET A EERNKHR TR ZLSCFR
LitBOTT,

#ETORET AN I YROER SRS RRED A,

# FERzOMAEFEMSION SEAAOSEMOSE RS SEE
IFHOREZEOCR- B/ - FEE, D EB LT O ESNT
BESARDPATETFLESOTY, 7P /ROMEER. 95
(RS B EEL DS T LIRS DTS, EIRD
Fl BEEIE B UVCE BLCEMBE R SRR LS RS BUET .,
fefd L, 27 2/ IR E M OISR oG s, SRERRIEE
HHT* HEEERALTVEYS.

CERET SO

B * & - BEEEREE T OPL B

ST - MECIKORUS Al 27w 2 (AT

IREEN - MECITT =270s" s =t wh o 2 F w0 2 (IS0
B - NOMURA-BPES

S - FTSE @l T r A (E<EF)

FFE - JPEILGELEMT O—=/ T - Fal =27
w RS KEIANLTBUET,

26/192



¥RIL(E2E TSR
7o/ &M

DIRRNEEEI SALDEERDLR

(%) (Jr2F:201743RABE) (201457F~20195%6R)
el

& Tl
=)

60
20
o

=40

JrvE BFH RAEG FERG BIEN CaEf SRR
[ PFR SRR EES S OTHREE. )

ENRARERE LU EER ()

B S e G R L G
o | 126 7ox] S| som| 07%] 07 -0.4%
B 52%) I70%| 25.5%| 41.5W| Z05%) S93%| 17.0%
lﬂ'n! =1.0M] =13.7%]=12.0%]-23.1%] - 159%] -6.9%|-21.5%

# HERE e RE RS S EERNICHE T S SR
LitHdTT.

HETOREF SN 77 AROS RS EEUE A,

W FREE 20 A7 ENS 201 0EaBOSEMOSEEFC BT EEE
TEMONERECRL - B - 28E, YRS LD R
AEIZACOVWTETFLESOTY. JPYPOBERR, Si02
(5 W) EEERLCSOSLT ML EE OB OT EL, R
MBS R AT L e R S s R T,
L, 7 YPRER SN ORE BEFSEaRLTh. ER LS
HiTEsd@ERELTVET,

<EREET I IOEN

8 * # - WHREEN(TOPM. BY)

SEHEE - MSCFKORUSALY >/ Z ()

FEES - MECITY — 3 T = ulb A Y TP 7 (BN
SHEHN - NCMURA-BPIEN

SN - FTSEHRER-r 77 A (E<EF)

FEEE - JPEANVGR-ENT D=L - Fall=20 21
SERMT. ERIEELTEURT,

EDINETOOOO

O0O00000000O0oonognognoOonod(e27078)
OooOooooOoooooooooboood

FOFMEERSSUIESARARAETEORE

(N (2014575~2019568) (%)
= — ARSFERRREE T ot
ol e ra ] e | T [ ——— &0
L -{ €0
10 f-- - = 40

e b e e e -1 20

0 : - - ~——antilf o
- wmaan e —20
~40

20N4E7R 20V5ETH 20165TA 20N 7ETA 2018578

RS TR R OB 7.

FSENRENEEEER. 20 7EEFEOMAEEEEEESELT
BHELTWET,

F7rposEeERERESEEs L EMNER (EARC SIS
B EMOREE) R, fioE (Holg) =B ELT LTI N
LiclBE LOndrss), BROR RS EE S LOFEROH R EEEE
BOLCHEL-SMRER- IR IS rEIET,

27/192



F‘J(ﬁﬁ}?-ﬁz

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

77/ FOFRERR S USRS B ANREDBROER

(%) (Fr2F:2017H3BBE) (2014%7H~20195%6R)
1og

o e
B fmmmmmfr s mm e n s e e e P a EEE

w R
.B“J e e e e 0 e 0 s
40

20
4]
=20

40

JrUF B%R RAEDR FREES Osl SEDR rEER

[ FrREMOARNGERDTS R OFEOEESE, :I
ERPREESLUREER ()

S [rUR] Otk [ e ] O o m e

o | 15w ome] 10w wawm] 20%] 2R 14%

[ ] 1.8 4195 24.1%| 37.2%| 9.3%| 19.2%| 19.3%

Bl | —2.6%| 27 0|17 5% 27 4%) —4.00]—12.3%|-17.4%

# FRE VRSB R AR SIS ERENCHE TR 2 LS i
LEEdTT,

HETOREISIN e vROERMREEEUEDS A,

# PR 200 AEF A& 201 SESBOSEM O &R FIC ST 2HE
1FHOREREORA - B - ROE, 77 VES LR RN
WEISZEPWIRERLESOTY, 7r/POMEERRR, 2=
B3 | SRRSO LT LT EOEOT S, ERG
HEEHE S WCE L ceEMEE R a I BarBUET,
RefEL, TR AR E D S0 OIE RrSE RN, BEEB LI
wHTEIEEEALTVET,

<ERETSATIEN

B % ¥ - BIREES(TOP. S

SRR - MSCIKOKUS ALY /57 3 (BRan)

PR - MSCIZV =0 T —trwb o 7w A RS
BAEHN - NCMURA-BPIE#

FMEN - FTSEHRREMWr »For AE<EE)

FEEH - PEASGRENS O=T - F e i—2 T p 2
HERT.FBRELTRUET,

(A (201 4F7H~20195%5R) (%)
25,000 100
— SEEFHRE RS EW
20000 - FrUPCEMREREN] - - 8o
(6 5[ e e s e ~ B0
(1,783 110 oy ey i s a0
B e e e e e e - 20
D i i i Il 1 — u
__________________________________________________ —20
=40

201457R 2015%7R 2016578 201 ME7H 2018578

o PR T S TS IR D DR T .

st E RN EEEL. 20 FERIAFEONEEEETESALT
BRELTWET,

%P /EOSEEE NEHETEEE L ENRER (EERCETE
BT SMOMER) 2. SES(EHS W =ERELT&0OELTEN
Lzl oeoThl), ERORREEEs RUERORESESEII
BOWTE RUCEHEE RS AL EsnEleT,

28/192



M3 (fE2@) 75
TPVREMDRENGREISALORBROLR

[%é (Fr2F201 TEIERE)
1]

(201457R~20 19268}

& T
B bosmmmde s s s s raBia |

|-.rjtl
51 5] — 5 - T mam s s k  m

JFUE B¥E GREE nEEE BrEl cemi nEmi

[ PR EAOHRNTRES S DFHRER. ]
ENRCEERELUREER (%)

JrrE| Bl wtﬁmmmﬂmﬂgml
T | —1.3% 9] 10000 3% 2.0%] 28%]  1.4%
BA{E 21%| 41.9%] 0% 37| 9.3%] 19.3%]) 19.3%
Byl | -24an]-22.0%|-17.0%-27.4%] —4.00]-12.3%]-17.4%

w PR TR RSN LRSS STEERMIC T S ESIC T
LiEsdDTT,

W TOREIIAN T VEOREYS SIREDED L,

m PR IO 47 RS 10 SEAOSEMDER FL B IHI
TEEMOEERORL - B F8%E, 7 rrFe RO s
HECSS I WTEFLLLOTY, 7PVEPOBEERR HER
(HS W) EEEELT 0L T NLEEE LOBOTHY, RIgD
HRE EEc BT LM RS- R Ea s ET,
R, 77 AFRE R EMORE RS ED R s, RS LR
HicE:afsmELTAEY,

<EEET ZATHER>

B #* # - BiEEN(TOPN. L)

SEREEE - MSCLKOKUS ALY 27w Z (B

TR - MECIT T =2 T =t w2 o7 2 (BE5R)
BAEH - NCHLIRA-BFIEHR

FEERiN - FTSEH FEilr > Fu0 2 ECE#)

SRR - IPELSYGRIEEMTO=L - F il l=2 77 1

HERNNE. FRNLTEYEY,

EDINETOOOO

O0O00000000O0oonognognoOonod(e27078)
OooOooooOoooooooooboood

) (2014578 ~2019%6R) (%)
25,000 100
— HeE MR R EEE W

20,000 |- == IPURDEMBRER(ER) |- oommemoemeannaaae] a0
|5Im0 . T —————— BU
10,000 - - - 40
BOOOD frmremmsmmsesnammne e s e {20
o i - 0

- T =T

-4p

2014578 201557A 20167 POVEETR 2018578

HERNANEEL EEERTRED DS OET Y,

woEREENEEEER. 20 7EAFOHEREEEEERELT
SRl TVET,

#IP VRO ERERENEEETES LAEMNER(GRRCHIS
B M O E) 12, R (S R EL T D ELTE
L iE QDT i), RIROH R B L U IR OR R B
EOVWCIH LSRR RS ML IS BUET.

29/192



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

TOPIX

MSCI-KOKUSAI
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NOMURA-BP
FTSE

FTSE Fixed IncomeLLC FTSE Fixed Income LLC

FTSE Fixed Income LLC

JP GBI-EM

JP. Morgan SecuritiesLLC
JP. Morgan SecuritiesLLC

30/192



3.24
15,000
0.03
0.22
0.35
0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05 50,000

31/192

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10 3.3

0.015

0.68
0.25
0.40

0.02



a
Q@

2019

2019

FATCA/CRS
28
15,001
543,085
147,064

15,973
479,192

XV

180,000

28

32/192

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.60

140,000

1,500

125,872

2019 30



1€

4

(G

(6
@

15.315

2038

15

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

20 15
20 15
20 15

2037 12 31 20.315
2038 20 15
15

2037 12 31 15.315 2038
20 15
20 15
2037 12 31 20.315 15.315
20 15
®)
81 50
2019

33/192



EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
ooooodogoodooooooodd

66,287,116.55 92.04
4,678,852.63 6.50
70,965,969.18 98.54
1,052,054.81 1.46
72,018,023.99
100.00
7,762,822,806
2019
US TREAS NTS 3.125% 2028
3.125 4,080,000.00 | 108.62| 4,431,885.18]109.68| 4,475,090.64| 6.21
11/15/28 11 15
FHR 4750 PA 3% 2046
3 3,583,946.36 | 100.30| 3,594,597.38|101.41| 3,634,603.29| 5.05
07/15/46 15
UMBS P#BE7188 4% 2047
4 3,380,592.68 ] 105.18 | 3,555,779.25|105.08 | 3,552,386.69| 4.93
03/01/747
FHR 4752 PL 3% 2046
3 2,671,684.65]100.22| 2,677,657.87|101.92| 2,723,015.46| 3.78
09/15/46 15
FNR 2018-33 A 3% 2048
3 2,612,791.17| 96.90| 2,531,909.99]101.06| 2,640,574.81| 3.67
05/25/48 25
FGLMC P#Q44452 3% 2046
3 2,426,395.26| 99.47| 2,413,576.27|101.36| 2,459,464.75| 3.42
11/01/46 11
UMBS P#MA2806 3% 2046
3 2,422,758.60| 100.83 | 2,442,749.20|101.29| 2,454,030.26| 3.41
11/01/46 11
UMBS P#AS6503 3.5% 2046
3.5 1,962,269.57| 102.88| 2,018,832.59]103.13| 2,023,626.25| 2.81
01/01/46
UMBS P#MA2888 2.5% 2047
2.5 1,777,714.96| 96.95| 1,723,431.26| 99.29| 1,765,150.85| 2.45
01/01/47
MABS 2007-HE1 A3 V/R 2037
10 2.6144 1,696,119.88| 94.81| 1,608,117.10| 95.34| 1,617,063.56| 2.25
05/25/37 25
FGLMC P#Q42197 3.5% 2046
11 3.5 1,514,886.04| 103.18| 1,563,124.75]103.42| 1,566,659.75| 2.18
08/01/46
UMBS P#AS9430 3% 2037
12 3 1,529,581.81| 102.03| 1,560,657.13]101.77| 1,556,602.62| 2.16
04/01/37
OOMLT 2007-6 1A1 V/R 2037
13 2.5944 1,610,422.95| 83.13| 1,338,816.64| 90.92| 1,464,159.35| 2.03
07/25/37 25
FNR 2017-51 EA 3% 2042
14 3 1,206,222.51|101.42| 1,223,291.71]101.34| 1,222,422.08| 1.70
11/25/42 11 25
FNR 2016-72 ZG 3% 2046
15 3 1,273,742.25| 93.20| 1,187,182.84| 94.58| 1,204,765.80| 1.67
10/25/46 10 25
PRPM 2018-1A A1 V/R 2023
16 3.75 1,148,531.01| 99.72| 1,145,365.57]100.18| 1,150,574.48| 1.60
04/25/23 25
US TREAS NTS 2.375% 2029
17 2.375 1,100,000.00 | 102.52| 1,127,752.92|103.34| 1,136,738.28| 1.58
05/15/29 15
FHR 4223 SB V/R 2043
18 2.4862 1,124,358.10| 89.49| 1,006,239.71| 95.63| 1,075,226.24| 1.49
07/15/43 15
FNR 2016-52 ZC 3% 2046
19 3 1,131,135.88| 91.90| 1,039,520.48| 94.78| 1,072,089.57| 1.49
08/25/46 25
RAST 2006-A9CB A6 6% 2036
20 6 1,864,353.81| 72.45| 1,350,785.76| 56.87| 1,060,229.67| 1.47
09/25/36 25
FHR 4748 NT 3.5% 2044
21 3.5 1,000,000.00 101.78| 1,017,814.60105.24| 1,052,375.30| 1.46
06/15/44 15
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WMABS 2006-HE3 1 V/R 2036

22 2.5594 1,028,807.09| 92.16 948,104.67 | 93.83 965,322.80| 1.34
08/25/36 25
WFMBS 2006-AR14 V/R 2036

23 4.7539 921,688.17| 98.38 906,785.62| 99.91 920,833.03| 1.28
10/25/36 10 25
PMTCR 2019-2R A V/R 2023

24 5.1541 900,000.00 100 900,000.00 | 100.16 901,477.17| 1.25
05/27/23 27
PRPM 2018-3A A1 V/R 2023

25 4.483 886,052.14| 99.69 883,273.56 | 101.50 899,373.67| 1.25
10/25/23 10 25
RASC 2007-EMX1 A V/R 2037

26 2.6044 973,535.15| 89.13 867,669.49| 90.49 880,953.32| 1.22
01/25/37 25
JIMMY 2017-1A 4.846% 2047

27 4.846 835,125.00 100 835,125.00 | 104.84 875,527.35| 1.22
07/30/27 30
UMBS P#AS9937 3% 2047

28 3 843,869.56 | 100.07 844,465.56 | 101.30 854,802.10| 1.19
07/01/747
CWHL 2006-0A5 2A V/R 2046

29 2.6044 943,059.00| 85.66 807,836.20 | 86.44 815,173.50| 1.13
04/25/36 25
CWALT 2005-4 1A 5.5% 2035

30 5.5 939,564.15| 88.33 829,931.50 | 85.12 799,714.25| 1.11
04/25/35 25
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2018 2019
2018 28 8,686,382.00 936,305,116 9.87 1,064
2019 28 2,762,565.00 297,776,881 9.87 1,064
2018 3,525,886.99 380,055,359 9.81 1,057
3,219,523.00 347,032,384 9.85 1,062
2,958,695.36 318,917,773 9.78 1,054
10 2,467,342.75 265,954,875 9.72 1,048
11 2,475,865.68 266,873,562 9.75 1,051
12 2,362,367.09 254,639,549 9.84 1,061
2019 2,377,093.42 256,226,900 9.89 1,066
2,762,565.00 297,776,881 9.87 1,064
2,792,369.89 300,989,550 9.97 1,075
2,791,642.73 300,911,170 9.96 1,074
2,823,183.88 304,310,990 10.07 1,085
2,836,399.26 305,735,476 10.11 1,090
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2018 28 30,965,492.00 3,337,770,383 9.93 1,070
2019 28 23,351,368.00 2,517,043,957 10.05 1,083
2018 26,878,004.36 2,897,180,090 9.92 1,069
26,650,196.00 2,872,624,627 9.97 1,075

25,038,716.38 2,698,923,239 9.87 1,064

10 24,347,151.08 2,624,379,415 9.83 1,060

11 24,481,218.06 2,638,830,495 9.88 1,065

12 24,578,656.63 2,649,333,398 9.99 1,077

2019 23,966,861.54 2,583,388,005 10.06 1,084
23,351,368.00 2,517,043,957 10.05 1,083

23,228,674.11 2,503,818,782 10.12 1,001

22,719,072.74 2,448,888,851 10.13 1,092

22,483,923.93 2,423,542,160 10.26 1,106

21,933,189.13 2,364,178,456 10.32 1,112
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2018 28 1,319,826,597 9,747
2019 28 938,086,516 9,560
2018 1,144,282,713 9,625
1,009,313,414 9,644

950,944,523 9,570

10 930,897,543 9,497

11 961,825,508 9,509

12 967,706,858 9,567

2019 971,039,216 9,599
938,086,516 9,560

851,935,806 9,643

861,139,609 9,619

868,521,140 9,701

895,099,796 9,723
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2018 28 4,649,612,061 9,785
2019 28 4,111,604,311 9,658
2018 4,237,006,798 9,681
4,239,761,602 9,711

4,177,172,344 9,610

10 4,145,928,945 9,549

11 4,144,977,908 9,573

12 4,146,794,595 9,643

2019 4,142,100,933 9,685
4,111,604,311 9,658

4,115,316,571 9,713

4,110,342,597 9,701

4,209,487,600 9,796

4,195,446,656 9,831
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0.12 13 0.06 6

0.24 26 0.12 13

2018 0.02 2 0 0
0.02 2 0 0

0.02 2 0.06 6

10 0.02 2 0 0

11 0.02 2 0 0

12 0.02 2 0 0

2019 0.02 2 0 0
0.02 2 0 0

0.02 2 0.06 6

0.02 2 0 0

0.02 2 0 0

0.02 2 0 0

0.44 47 0.24 26
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60 40
120 80
2018 10 0
10 0
10 40
10 10 0
11 10 0
12 10 0
2019 10 0
10 0
10 40
10 0
10 0
10 0
220 160
-0.10 -0.10 -1.93 -1.75
2.43 2.42 -0.69 -0.48
100x%
10
10,000
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1,126,302 246,498 879,804
(1,126,302) (246,498) (879,804)
61,776 661,560 280,020
(61,776) (661,560) (280,020)
3,340,569 222,631 3,117,938
(3,340,569) (222,631) (3,117,938)
134,461 929,636 2,322,763
(134,461) (929,636) (2,322,763)
139,992 4,587 135,405
(139,992) (4,587) (135, 405)
13,275 50,556 98,124
(13,275) (50,556) (98,124)
588,854 113,665 475,189
(588,854) (113,665) (475,189)
1,246 50,716 425,719
(1,246) (50,716) (425,719)
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2019 28
2019 28
71,975,547 70,092,882 7,555,312
1,652,066 178,076
81,047 8,736
213,813 23,047
2,250 243
72,042,058 7,765,413
205,328 22,132
136,999 14,767
70,297 7,577
38,663 4,167
37,770 4,071
24,513 2,642
16,277 1,754
3,805 410
2,356 254
2,168 234
28,012 3,019
566,188 61,029
71,475,870 7,704,384
73,412,749 7,913,160
2,338,552 252,073
(2,189,684) (236,026)
(2,085,747) (224,823)
71,475,870 7,704,384
938,086,516
98,124 9,560
4,111,604,311
425,719 9,658
2,762,565
280,020 9.87 1,064
23,351,368
2,322,763 10.05 1,083
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2019 28

3,551,509 382,817
3,551,509 382,817
543,085 58,539
479,192 51,652
147,064 15,852
17,100 1,843
15,973 1,722
15,001 1,617
13,884 1,497
9,550 1,029
85,338 9,199
1,326,187 142,950
2,225,322 239,867
(445,859) (48,059)
(3,306,495) (356,407)
(3,752,354) (404,466)
6,524 703
(236,249) (25,465)
(229,725) (24,762)
(3,982,079) (429,228)
(1,756,757) (189, 361)
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2019 28

2,225,322 239,867
(3,752,354) (404, 466)

(229,725) (24,762)

(1,756,757) (189, 361)

(120,382) (12,976)

(333,450) (35,943)

(125,331) (13,509)

(340,121) (36,662)

(919,284) (99,090)

13,275 1,138,155 122,682
1,246 113,491 12,233
61,776 608,589 65,600
134,461 1,329,074 143,261
50,556 (4,439,202) (478,502)
50,716 (4,481,341) (483,044)
661,560 (6,502,899) (700,947)
929,636 (9,209,212) (992,661)
(21,443,345) (2,311,378)

(24,119,386) (2,599,829)

95,595,256 10,304,213

71,475,870 7,704,384
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2019 28

(1,756,757) (189,361)
(12,185,184) (1,313,441)
34,711,127 3,741,512

(81,446) (8,779)
445,859 48,059
(6,523) (703)
236,081 25,447
43,863 4,728
11,005 1,186
(29,857) (3,218)
(22,370) (2,411)
(9,998) (1,078)
(33,731) (3,636)
(13,669) (1,473)
(887) (96)
(26,395) (2,845)
(5,648) (609)
(6,798) (733)
21,268,672 2,292,550
3,114,217 335,681
(24,495,655) (2,640,387)
(919,284) (99,090)
(22,300,722) (2,403,795)
(1,032,050) (111,245)
2,684,116 289,321
1,652,066 178,076
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2019 28
2019 2019
28 28 2019 28 2019 28
9,747 9,785 9.87 1,064 9.93 1,070
251 271 0.28 30 0.28 30
(318) (318) (0.04) 4) (0.04) 0))
(67) C)) 0.24 26 0.24 26
(120) (80) (0.24) (26) (0.12) (13)
9,560 9,658 9.87 1,064 10.05 1,083
(0.69) (0.48) 2.48 2.44
938,087 4,111,604 2,763 297,824 23,351 2,517,004
1.87 1.67 1.62 1.59
2.62 2.81 2.81 2.84

@
@
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2019 28
(@D)
98.1
6.6
6.6
AIMCO CLO Series 2015-A Class AR
500,000 3.64% due 01/15/28(MH@ 0.7 496,239
CFIP CLO 2014-1 Ltd. Class AR
500,000 4.12% due 07/13/29(M® 0.7 500,024
KREF 2018-FL1 Ltd. Class A
84,000 3.59% due 06/15/36(M® 0.1 83,863
Marathon CLO VIl 2014-7A Ltd. Class A1R
500,000 4.08% due 10/28/25W@ 0.8 500,104
Midocean Credit Clo VIl 2017-7A Class Al
250,000 4.11% due 07/15/29M® 0.3 250,012
Northwoods Capital XI-B Ltd. Class Al
500,000 3.86% due 04/19/31(M® 0.7 492,584
Sprite 2017-1 Ltd. Class A
227,359 4.25% due 12/15/37® 0.3 225,888
Steele Creek CLO 2015-1 Ltd. Class AR
250,000 3.90% due 05/21/29()® 0.3 249,650
Steele Creek CLO 2016-1 Ltd. Class AR
500,000 3.91% due 06/15/31(MH® 0.7 493,543
Venture XX CLO Ltd. 2015-20A Class AR
500,000 3.61% due 04/15/27(M® 0.7 496,795
Wellfleet CLO 2017-2 Ltd. Class Al
500,000 4.01% due 10/20/29(M® 0.7 498,999
Zais CLO 2 2014-2A Ltd. Class AlAR
432,817 3.97% due 07/25/26(L® 0.6 432,821
4,720,522
4,720,522
91.5
68.6
Ajax Mortgage Loan Trust 2018-C Class A
386,835 4.36% due 09/25/65@®) 0.5 388,246
Alternative Loan Trust 2005-4 Class 1A2
945,460 5.50% due 04/25/35 1.1 788,888
Alternative Loan Trust 2007-0A8 Class 1Al
846,860 2.67% due 06/25/47( 1.0 712,886
Atrium Hotel Portfolio Trust 2017-ATRM Class
E
111,000 5.54% due 12/15/36(M® 0.2 111,660
BANK 2017-BNK4 Class XA
085,375 1.44% due 05/15/50) 0.1 80,853
BANK 2017-BNK6 Class XA
1,483,856 0.87% due 07/15/60®) 0.1 78,517
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Q)
BANK 2018-BNK10 Class XA
1,884,790 0.75% due 02/15/61® 0.1 100,363
Bear Stearns ARM Trust 2007-1 Class 2Al1
501,554 4.91% due 02/25/47®) 0.6 464,180
Bear Stearns Asset Backed Securities | Trust
2007-HE6 Class 1Al
290,154 3.74% due 08/25/37( 0.4 287,458
BX Trust 2017-SLCT Class D
62,050 4.54% due 07/15/34(M® 0.1 61,934
BX Trust 2017-SLCT Class E
104,550 5.64% due 07/15/34(M® 0.1 104,681
CD 2017-CD4 Mortgage Trust Class XA
1,435,991 1.32% due 05/10/50® 0.2 109,836
CFCRE Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C8 Class
XA
1,367,892 1.66% due 06/15/50() 0.2 130,299
CHL Mortgage Pass-Through Trust 2006-0A5
Class 2A1
058,634 2.69% due 04/25/46() 1.1 816,251
CHT 2017-COSMO Mortgage Trust Class E
174,000 5.49% due 11/15/36(MO@ 0.2 174,546
CHT 2017-COSMO Mortgage Trust Class F
93,000 6.23% due 11/15/36(M® 0.1 93,288
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2014-GC19
Class XA
2,218,345 1.16% due 03/10/47(® 0.2 108,281
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2015-GC35
Class XA
1,748,458 0.87% due 11/10/48® 0.1 69,015
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-P7
Class XA
390,732 1.13% due 04/14/50® 0.0 27,060
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2018-TBR
Class D
189,000 4.29% due 12/15/36(M® 0.3 189,176
CLNS Trust 2017-1KPR Class D
44,000 4.57% due 06/11/32(L® 0.1 44,027
CLNS Trust 2017-1KPR Class E
44,000 6.02% due 06/11/32(M® 0.1 44,165
CLNS Trust 2017-1KPR Class F
44,000 7.02% due 06/11/32(M® 0.1 44,165
Cold Storage Trust 2017-ICE3 Class A
51,000 3.49% due 04/15/36(M® 0.1 50,871
Cold Storage Trust 2017-1CE3 Class C
62,000 3.84% due 04/15/36(M® 0.1 61,843
COMM 2013-CCRE9 Mortgage Trust Class XA
18,913,212 0.12% due 07/10/45® 0.1 70,255
COMM 2013-LC6 Mortgage Trust Class XA
1,880,735 1.36% due 01/10/46( 0.1 80,763
COMM 2015-LC21 Mortgage Trust Class XA
2,779,133 0.77% due 07/10/48® 0.1 91,590
CSMC Trust 2017-LSTK Class C
51,000 3.23% due 04/05/33® 0.1 50,442
CSMC Trust 2017-LSTK Class D
61,000 3.33% due 04/05/33@® 0.1 60,042
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(@D)
CSMC Trust 2017-LSTK Class E
89,000 3.33% due 04/05/33@® 0.1 87,014
CSMC Trust 2017-LSTK Class XACP
7,012,000 0.57% due 04/05/33™® 0.1 50,291
CSMC Trust 2017-LSTK Class XBCP
2,553,000 0.21% due 04/05/33® 0.0 7,628
CSWF 2018-TOP Class A
90,000 3.49% due 08/15/35(M® 0.1 89,691
Deephaven Residential Mortgage Trust 2017-1
Class Al
336,923 2.73% due 12/26/46(® 0.5 334,178
Deephaven Residential Mortgage Trust 2017-1
Class A2
336,923 2.93% due 12/26/46(®) 0.5 334,676
Fannie Mae REMICS 2016-52 Class ZC
1,119,895 3.00% due 08/25/46 1.4 977,110
Fannie Mae REMICS 2016-72 Class ZG
1,261,084 3.00% due 10/25/46 1.5 1,053,926
Fannie Mae REMICS 2017-12 Class TA
2,494,822 3.00% due 04/25/42 3.4 2,497,118
Fannie Mae REMICS 2017-13 Class CA
1,674,066 2.50% due 10/25/43 2.3 1,639,177
Fannie Mae REMICS 2017-32 Class CA
1,648,683 3.00% due 10/25/42 2.3 1,639,030
Fannie Mae REMICS 2017-51 Class EA
1,263,645 3.00% due 11/25/42 1.8 1,252,517
Fannie Mae REMICS 2018-33 Class A
2,744,771 3.00% due 05/25/48 3.7 2,689,029
Freddie Mac REMICS 4223 Class SB
1,124,358 2.40% due 07/15/43® 1.4 971,600
Freddie Mac REMICS 4627 Class Z
646,010 3.00% due 10/15/46 0.8 571,700
Freddie Mac REMICS 4748 Class NT
1,000,000 3.50% due 06/15/44 1.4 1,005,918
Freddie Mac REMICS 4750 Class PA
3,720,303 3.00% due 07/15/46 5.1 3,684,675
Freddie Mac REMICS 4752 Class PL
2,777,976  3.00% due 09/15/46 3.8 2,757,158
GCAT 2017-2 LLC Class Al
252,136 3.50% due 04/25/47@® 0.4 250,748
GCAT 2018-2 LLC Class Al
724,742 4.09% due 06/26/23(™@* 1.0 726,490
Great Wolf Trust 2017-WOLF Class D
45,000 4.74% due 09/15/34(M® 0.1 45,029
Great Wolf Trust 2017-WOLF Class E
70,000 5.74% due 09/15/34(M®@ 0.1 70,087
Great Wolf Trust 2017-WOLF Class F
37,000 6.71% due 09/15/34()® 0.1 37,092
GS Mortgage Securities Corp. Trust 2018-3PCK
Class A
86,000 3.94% due 09/15/31M® 0.1 85,858
GS Mortgage Securities Corp. Trust 2018-FBLU
Class F
100,000 5.74% due 11/15/35(M® 0.1 99,936
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1,926,645

884,117

989,873

837,250

20,000

15,000

49,000

3,220,071

49,000

46,000

41,000

58,000

97,000

94,000

1,378,389

500,000

91,442

1,780,560

GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2015-GC28 Class
XA

1.10% due 02/10/48®

GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2017-GS6 Class
XA

1.05% due 05/10/50®

GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2017-GS7 Class
XA

1.14% due 08/10/50®

Jimmy Johns Funding LLC 2017-1A Class A2l1
4.85% due 07/30/47®

JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Corp. 2017-FL10 Class B

3.49% due 06/15/32(1)

JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Corp. 2017-FL10 Class C

3.74% due 06/15/32(M)

JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Corp. 2017-FL10 Class D

4.39% due 06/15/32(L®

JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2014-C20 Class XA

1.07% due 07/15/47®

JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2017-MAUI Class C

3.77% due 07/15/34(M@)

JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2017-MAUI Class D

4_47% due 07/15/34O®@

JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2017-MAUI Class E

5.47% due 07/15/34O®

JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2017-MAUI Class F

6.27% due 07/15/34(M@

JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2018-LAQ Class A

3.49% due 06/15/32(L)

JPMBB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2015-C28 Class C

4.22% due 10/15/48®

JPMBB  Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2015-C32 Class XA

1.43% due 11/15/48®)

Lendmark Funding Trust 2017-1A Class A

2.83% due 12/22/25®

Marlette Funding Trust 2018-1 Class A

2.61% due 03/15/28®@

MASTR Asset Backed Securities Trust 2007-HEl
Class A3

2.70% due 05/25/37(M

65/192

78,418

62,464

71,721

823,688

20,003

15,004

48,906
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46,029

41,077

57,913

96,605

92,986

62,795

494,864

91,214
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(@)

Morgan Stanley Bank of America Merrill Lynch
Trust 2014-C19 Class XA
1,512,800 1.10% due 12/15/47(® 0.1 53,820
Morgan Stanley Bank of America Merrill Lynch
Trust 2017-C33 Class XA
1,834,978 1.44% due 05/15/50® 0.2 138,901
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2011-C1 Class
D
138,000 5.37% due 09/15/47™® 0.2 143,099
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2016-UB11
Class XA
1,287,405 1.64% due 08/15/49® 0.1 106,873
Morgan Stanley Capital | Trust 2016-UBS12
Class XA
1,277,542 0.80% due 12/15/49() 0.1 54,517
Morgan Stanley Capital I Trust 2017-H1 Class
XA
088,262 1.45% due 06/15/50) 0.1 79,020
Option One Mortgage Loan Trust 2007-6 Class
1A1
1,669,824 2.68% due 07/25/37( 2.1 1,506,516
PFP 2017-3 Ltd. Class C
94,000 4.99% due 01/14/35(M® 0.1 94,125
PRPM 2017-2 LLC Class Al
821,364 3.47% due 09/25/22™@# 1.1 818,444
PRPM 2018-1 LLC Class Al
1,284,108 3.75% due 04/25/23@®) 1.8 1,278,378
PRPM 2018-3 LLC Class Al
966,605 4.48% due 10/25/23(™®) 1.4 971,206
PRPM 2019-1 LLC Class Al
697,213 4.50% due 01/25/24@ 1.0 700,677
RAIT 2017-FL7 Trust Class AS
28,000 3.79% due 06/15/37(M® 0.0 27,648
RALI Series 2006-QS13 Trust Class 1A3
800,028 6.00% due 09/25/36 1.0 700,618
RALI Series 2007-QH5 Trust Class All
1,209,705 2.72% due 06/25/37(D 0.9 663,413
RASC Series 2007-EMX1 Trust Class Al3
1,037,984 2.69% due 01/25/37( 1.3 926,375
Residential Asset Securitization Trust 2006-
A9CB Class A6
1,895,721 6.00% due 09/25/36 1.5 1,081,134
Rosslyn Portfolio Trust 2017-ROSS Class A
65,000 3.46% due 06/15/33(M® 0.1 64,939
Rosslyn Portfolio Trust 2017-R0OSS Class B
65,000 3.76% due 06/15/33(M® 0.1 64,756
SoFi Professional Loan Program 2017-E LLC
Class B
500,000 3.49% due 11/26/40» 0.7 482,167
SoFi Professional Loan Program 2017-E LLC
Class C
250,000 4.16% due 11/26/40> 0.3 242,733
SoFi Professional Loan Program 2017-F LLC
Class BFX
500,000 3.62% due 01/25/41(> 0.7 486,500
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Springleaf Funding Trust 2017-AA Class A
250,000 2.68% due 07/15/30 0.3 246,814
Starwood Mortgage Residential Trust 2018-IMC2
Class A2
471,042 4.22% due 10/25/48()(®) 0.7 475,476
Starwood Mortgage Residential Trust 2018-IMC2
Class A3
471,042 4.38% due 10/25/48(® 0.7 475,471
Tharaldson Hotel Portfolio Trust 2018-THPT
Class E
159,181 5.69% due 11/11/34M®@ 0.2 159,878
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C1 Class
XA
1,191,645 1.59% due 06/15/50() 0.2 113,837
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C3 Class
XA
2,418,066 1.13% due 08/15/50) 0.2 164,554
UBS-Barclays Commercial Mortgage Trust 2013-
C5 Class XA
2,004,564 0.96% due 03/10/46®) 0.1 63,270
UBS-Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2011-
Cl1 Class D
118,000 6.05% due 01/10/45(™®) 0.2 124,648
Vantage Data Centers Issuer LLC 2018-1A Class
A2
495,000 4.07% due 02/16/43®@ 0.7 498,015
VOLT LXXI1 LLC Class AlA
766,535 4.21% due 10/26/48@@# 1.1 762,027
Washington Mutual Mortgage Pass-Through
Certificates WMALT Series 2007-2 Trust Class
1A1
619,537 7.00% due 04/25/37 0.5 383,767
Washington Mutural Asset-Backed Certificates
WMABS Series 2006-HE3 Trust Class 1A
1,055,281 2.64% due 08/25/36(M 1.4 976,285
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2010-C1
Class C
140,000 5.60% due 11/15/43® 0.2 143,879
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2015-
C27 Class C
98,000 3.89% due 02/15/48 0.1 93,972
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2015-
NXS4 Class E
193,000 3.60% due 12/15/48()®) 0.2 160,545
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2016-
C33 Class XA
966,342 1.77% due 03/15/59(® 0.1 82,532
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-
C38 Class XA
951,123 1.07% due 07/15/50® 0.1 62,681
Wells Fargo Mortgage Backed Securities 2006-
AR14 Trust Class 2Al
989,868 4.75% due 10/25/36() 1.4 976,713
49,026,249
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(@D)
22.9
Fannie Mae Pool
1,808,551 2.50% due 01/01/47 2.4 1,717,237
1,600,832 3.00% due 04/01/37 2.2 1,586,717
587,583 3.00% due 06/01/43 0.8 577,393
882,808 3.00% due 07/01/47 1.2 863,663
1,976,686 3.50% due 01/01/46 2.8 1,983,469
3,465,900 4.00% due 03/01/47 5.0 3,555,409
Freddie Mac Gold Pool
2,515,396 3.00% due 11/01/46 3.4 2,463,521
1,548,460 3.50% due 08/01/46 2.2 1,553,167
2,039,333 3.50% due 11/01/46 2.9 2,045,535
16,346,111
65,372,360
71,975,547 70,092,882
71,975,547 98.1 70,092,882
1.9 1,382,988
100.0 71,475,870

(7.704,384,027 )

(1)2019 28 Floating Rate
(2)144A 1933 144A
(3)2019 28 Variable Rate
(4)2019 28
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Brown Brothers

Harriman & Co. 450,000 2019 (4,067) (25)
Brown Brothers
Harriman & Co. 600,000 2019 (5,423) (33)
Brown Brothers
Harriman & Co. 1,700,000 2019 (15,364) (93)
Brown Brothers
Harriman & Co. 617 2019 (68,381) 3
(148)
Brown Brothers
Harriman & Co. 68,381 2019 26 (618) (©)
Citibank NA 942,191,796 2019 26 (8,517,202) (38,156)
Citibank NA 96,828 2019 26 (10,712,100) 427
(37,732)
Citibank NA 4,124,251,606 2019 26 (37,282,309) (167,018)
Citibank NA 413,067 2019 26 (45,697,685) 1,820
(165,198)
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2019 28

2019 28
70,092,882 70,092,882
2,250 2,250
70,095,132 70,095,132
2019 28
205,328 205,328
205,328 205,328
FASB ASC 740

50
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10 1,842
44
670,764
42
2,593,612
()
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2018

2019

2019
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12,368,929 43,574,453 8,686,382 30,965,492 95,595,256
1,138,155 113,491 608,589 1,329,074 3,189,309
(4,439,202) (4,481,341)  (6,502,899)  (9,209,212)  (24,632,654)
(120,382)  (333,450) (125,331) (340,121) (919, 284)
(520,564) (1,938,152) 95,824 606,135 (1,756,757)
8,426,936 36,935,001 2,762,565 23,351,368 71,475,870

135,405 475,189 879,804 3,117,938 4,608,336
13,275 1,246 61,776 134,461 210,759
(50, 556) (50,716) (661,560) (929, 636) (1,692,468)
98,124 425,719 280,020 2,322,763 3,126,627
85.88 86.76 9.87 10.05
10,000
10.00
10
2019 28
2019 28
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10
2017

ASC 815-10-50

a b

c
ASC 815
1SDA 1SDA
1SDA

2019 28 MNA

MNA

(€3]
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Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 3 (©)
Citibank NA 2,247 (2,247)
2,250 (2,250)
2019 28 MNA
MNA
(©)
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 154 (©) 151
Citibank NA 205,174 (2,247) 202,927
205,328 (2,250) 203,078
@
2019 28
2,250 (205,328)
2019 28
(3,262,534) (236,081)

76/192



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.68 0.03 0.25
0.22
0.40 0.35
2019 28
543,085 2019 28 37,770
0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05
50,000
2019 28 147,064 2019
28 24,513
0.015
15,000 2019
28 15,001 2019 28 3,805
0.02
2019 28 15,973
2019 28 2,356
0.60
2019 28 479,192
2019 28 70,297
10
140,000
FATCA/CRS 1,500
11
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2007 - 2008
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13
2019
2019
537,946
2019
449,246
22,419
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1970
28
2019 26 194,527
5,756 527,787
2019 26 933,245
2,784,165
33,003 151,881
138,459
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

February 28, 2019

[Expressed in United States Dallar, unless otherwise indicated)
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Artetl

lirreirsbmaef in setiitien, 88 walue [oont of USD TLATS.547)

T

Ruotaivadii hor Subalrtion procinds

Itgrint risdivablo

U pied spiprasc sbden on - forward fonngn currandy dsthangie contracs
Tl aassrts

L bl a:

Lianstived digrisiation om Sewied foraign Surnindy Suh brgi Lantr it
Payable By Uity redasmed

Accrsd distrisutor's fee

Asgrand praferviion sl faas

Adengd managmant fe

Auseruaid tuttad b nd sl -adeniniitrat onrs e
Accnaid regivtrabion fees

Accnaad trustes feat
Anefiagd et STk i ek

Azcnaid brinvhor agind faes

Acrud oo fapenyes

Tota! liaities

et Aseett Amributabde to Urithelden

Ansdyuis of Net Ristt:

Pasdin cagdial

Adtdurm litied wndlslniotied ned oy esitrnent gain

Accumulated net realived Josses on investmants and fneign cusTency transack'ons and foewand
Tor g currirsty dnchange contracti

it wnniligid durprd 0 on oo | mestmaets ind farelgn torrandy Bansactivng and forwaed fareign
EuTTeny i than g contrad

Kt dseete Atkribugable to Uratholden

et Aueet Value par Unin
AR Manthly Bistrbation Casd B 918 045,516 + 22,122 Units sutitindingl

AP S Al Dler it on Claaa P 4,111,604, 310 4 475,719 Units autitsnd rg)
JUSD Moy D strShetion Jd USD 2, 767565 + 280,000 Unis sutstanding]
AUED Sere A nual Bty ibution Olaca USD 31350 368 + 2,322,763 Units. outstan dingl

E

o 0,003, i
1,652,066

BL T

Fi3E1E

2,350

12042 058

|

05,528
134,999
297
AR 663
I
24,513
16,217
3505
1356
21068
12
SE6,1RE

|

8

TLAIS A0

8

14137049
2.338,553

13,189, B4}
Ar N

|

3

8,550
Y 650
BT
1005

g

8

The accompanying notes are an irfegral part of these financial datements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2019
[Expressed in United States Dallar)
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InyeSrmend Ingonee:
e st
Totdl Brwiss bk Icoma

Expenies:
e anagamnt foe
Dvsaribuhors feos
Cuslotan i fuh-admanvba o' faed
Teansfer agon S
Agent Somesany's s
Trusted faes
gt e S
Profinsony fbe
O i ik

Toval Espirriat

K [rwesDment Income

Reakred and Unrealived Gains/ [Losses)
Raulieed garaiioee)
InvirR e L in SRoiRi
Fanspr Surandy transachans and Brwand foralin turendy sathdnge Sortradiy
Bt raaliod lonsas
Charpiinn vl g aereinion| dapeagation)
Invistrmar s in ik
Fonipn curmincy tran sachon and formand foraipn oumendy @achange contracds
Wt ranga i uniealized dapracanmm
Bkt raali e aed uneaalined lodaes

e e an e i T AS0RCE NeSUBting YoM opeations.

The accompanying notes are an irfegral part of these financial datements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF CHAMNGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019
|Expressed in United States Dallar)

Increate [Decreate)in et st frome

Opsraione
K irmwsbrmin insame ush LEFRAN
Wet roaboed koo A2
et chan g in urvaalinod degrec alion I3 T25)
Het decrsase i nat assety resdting from oparabon L.TS8.T5
D ribution 1o Unitholders
BPY Manthly Distribution Class [120.382)
FPY S -Annual Dritrioton Tl [EE5A508
USD Mahily Distriution Clins (115330
LISD S -Annu & Distristion Clav Ba0223)
Total Distributions [EIEFCTTY
Capital Tranaations:
LA ivsed
P Marithly Divirbotion Caas (12275 Uniksj L1855
PY S -Annudt Dintriution Class (1,280 Unitsh 11%451
UISD Mionthly Distribwtion Class (63,776 Units] BOB5ES
IS0 S -Annu al Distrisution: O (134,461 o) 133307
L s it engd.
BPY Mamhly Distribetion Clas (50,556 Linity] AT IR
P St Al Distrction Claas (50,716 Lniti ) AR 3AL
LIS0 Monthly Givirdution Class (821, 560 Units) Rt ]
LIS Sem -Annuial Distrinution Clas (929,636 Uit 3,203 210
K deneand o il asiirt ridd Uing o Capaal Erienact ok El-"‘ﬂ
Toasl Didindd in hat ALnet] AL
Nt Assete
Bagioning of your o SSSLIS
End of yoar Lil TLATHED

The accompanying notes are an irfegral part of these financial datements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2019
|Expressed in United States Dallar)

Cash flows from operating acthitkes:
IR dErai i Nt Bsirs filting Friem Bparatine s [LTS8T5)

Adpustrnents to reconcle the net increase in net assets resulting from operations tonet cash used in
DpRraRing BivTiee:

Purshini of it s FERE ]
Procords from sale and maturity of investments rilax
Kt dmortisation and [aetration] of pramiurme and distsunts. o Sorpde dte debt shipationt and thoet Rirm [ LT
Tt

Haaiized fonas on mwstmant s in wcuritie 245,859
Chieg i orradlied SIrEint on &0 st mants [5.52
Charpé in wriraalieed diegeret] dtion on Torwird Sonipn cerency auchangi contrach 2 ca
Change in ateetn and lisbilivies relgted Lo opsbeaTiont;

Degradee in dividinds and botdriut reds vl AT SR
Dot i peipeaid sty 11005
Dadrease i atiroed adminsdrator feis [raEsn
Bedreass in accnoead professiona foes e ki)
Dol in Rosruid Bruiton fiet 1)
Dhisdrirdi in Sdnaed regrstrabion iy AR
Crecreasds i accnend managamont foe {1nEE5)
Disoradd in sccnued agirk company’s fises. R
Draoraass i accnued o shrib o s [P5.355)
Diperaase in attnoid ofhar daparas {55
Dt in trderidier g i E!ﬂ
e cadh provided By operating acthities 21, TEREID
Cathflava uied in finaning acivities

Procoads frors Linits laaod 2114317
Pt b U i ricirmand [ 4055550
(Cegtribast ke sl N L ksl e !5]‘-1'."&4'!
et cath wed in financing acthvities EERCCNEF]
Nt decreaie in cadb and forsifn darendy !Lﬂ!ﬂ
Cad and Rordign curvindy it Bogmn tirg, o year LERLINE
Cash ard fonelgm curmency at end of year 5o 1,658, 06k

The accompanying notes are an irfegral part of these financial datements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
FINAMCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019
Selected Per Unit Data and Ratios
[Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
IPY Mesthly 1PV Senad Asvicl usD Monthly LS Sel Snmual
Diswibution Clat  Dimribution Chiss  émribution Oatt  Disrbanien Cass

Four the Yeas Erded Foothe Year Ended  For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
February 28, 2019  Felwwary 28, 3009 Febowary 33, 3009 February 28, 2019

et At Valua, bognning of year 1 3747 4] Q.75 LS LET  LsD 2,0%
it irmvetrmint incama 251 m LE ]
et reabred and unnealined {l ossas) {215 {318} [0k} A0
Wit Indriasa { decriasel in net vt nisbdbng fram
oAt (57} a7} o 24
Larss diskribtions (3354 (RO} (24§ Ab17
Mt Ak Wl #md of e 1 3,56 Wi 558 LSl ET  USD LS
Toaal ratuer =t (OLAES 2.4E%  ETT
el L4 U [F]
e Syl vt al ol !
R ity of yaar {000 FERLET 4111604 LT .351
Hati o of aparreey 1o average not sty LETH 1.67% L 1.55%
Rati o of ol e st nComa Ro anarage nat
™ LEI% 21% 2H1% 1%

" Cubcadatiod uning Brivage Unts sutimandeg fae thi yiar,
= Caleuiatiod on an annual Bt

The accompanying notes are an irtegral part of these financial datements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS
Fabruary 28, 2019

{Expressed in United States Dallar)

Prinwipal Sofhet

Curreray  Arnournt iy Dwscription Assets Failr Walus
HKED IMCOME SECLETIES | 58 1%)
(CAYMUAN ISLANES |B#%)
ASSET BADOED SECURITIES [B.6%)

AMCD CL0 Series 20154 Class AR

LIk o] S00.000 S e DL 0% o S0
I O LA e Chass AR

usn SOODO0 417 due DRfL3 1 or 500,024
IEREF O1E-FLT L Dy &

LIk o] L ER P T -5 H3,843
Agrathon CLO VM 18- 25 00d. Cliss AIR

wsn SOO000 408N due LO/2E/ 2SS 0B 500,304
idecaun Cradik Cs VE 201774 Clans A1

usp 2WO00  A10% duw D715 25 o3 FLOT T
Wortrwonds Capltal KHB Lid, O Al

usn SOOUMO RS due D415 o7 402,584
Sprite 10171 1. Cass &

LIk o] FFEA L &35 due 12755300 o3 3%,
Segaks Cooel C10 A% 1 10d Ouii AR

it JeAB0G L du D521, 2908 %1 243,680
Skaele Dresk CLO I016-1 U Clss AR

usm SOOMO0 RS due DB/ISH o7 493,543
Vierkure 40 €00 W, 2015-504 Class AR

LI ] lu=teie i) 614 du 04 T2 or A, i
Wislest (10 20072 i, Clasn A2

usm SOOMMD A0 dus 020/ 290 oz 418,999
a1 C10 2 2074 24 L. Class ALAR

L +] a11817 LA due 072501 : T3 443,831
TOTAL ASSET-BADKED SECUSITIES 4 7L
TOTAL CAYMAM ISLANDS. 4B ALE
RITEE STATES (90,55

Alaa Moigpe Loan Trud 2005C G

LIl ] AEEET £, 1% o 029,18 0% A, 248
AN Lo Troit 20054 Cliss 182

LD SASAE)  5.50% due D4T25,/35 11 72,859
Adterrakiee Loan Tl 2007048 Clas 141

LIk o] BaGBED H7 dum DRSIWATY 10 71,
Al Hebal Bartlals Trudt 300 PATIma Ol

(1L THIBOG S duw 1218361 oz 111,560
BANE BOLTBNES Class KA

usn B33 TS 140 e 05/ 1550 o1 LR
AN 0L T BN Clans A

o 1ARLES RPN s D178 " =3 Fasid
BANE SOLE-BNELD Chn A

uin 148,10 . e DRESG -} BN
{Bear Stean ARM Troot 3007-1 Clugs 241

(1] SO1S54  L90% due D2/25/47" g 454, 180
Bear Shinis Avuet Baoked Secur ties | Truak 2007 HEG Cias 141

LIk o] 29008 B cue ORSI5/3FY ol 7
% Troat I PR CT Clia O

[IE ] = F 450 dus DR/ RS/ 53 61,95
0 Tewrst 30 P8O Charss B

[l IIESD G due D715, 3 ol 104,581
0 017004 Morigage Troet Dam K

win p S 130 e (055050 o H %o
CICRE Corrvwecisl Martgage Trust 2007.28 Clags XA

(1] LIETEN 166% dum D615, [F ] 130,299
OHL Mrtgage Fuan Thoough Trust 2006008 Oawt 1A1

usm e 3 1060 due D825 0 11 LTSS
T 217-CO%0 Mortg e Truit Sl B

LIk ] 114000 5. A0 due 1L a2 pEo L
CHT 1705 Mot g Trom Class #

Lin pikel BN o 11 15 W =3 I
itigraug Comenend ol Morage Trost JOLE-G01% Cate X4

usp 1213385 LI6%dus D3/ID/MAFN ol 108,281

The accompanying notes are an irfegral part of these financial datements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS {continued )
February 28, 2019
{Expressed in United States Dallar)
M lmtigal od b
cur Ampunt _ Secuaity Dn Auiety Fair alue
FIRED BCOIME SECLIRTTIES |58, 1% | continu e )
ARITER STATES [91.5%) [coatinued)
AARET AL D SECLRITIES [ R B jrontinued)
Oitigrous Comenenchal Moigage Trust 300560 O XA
LIk o] LrakA AT e 1100 2% L BN
Etigrewg Comenend sl Mangage Trost J01700 Cle KA
s IMIH 117 s D4/ 38/50" oo 7060
Oitigroup Comenendal Mo gage Trust 2008-TER Claas 0
U IO 4 due 1RSI o3 183,176
NS Trusk JO0T MR D 0
LIE ] &4000 A5 dun D1 -5 a0
CUNS Truak 2007 S0MR Oue £
wso 000 EUOTW due DAL/ a1 21,965
LN Trust DOATSEMA Qo |
usm B3000 700N due DE/IL/IFUS ol 43,065
Coid Storage Trutt 2007.10E 3 Dl ik
usm SO0 3R due DA/IRIT Bl Wi
‘Codd Sorage Tru SO0 7-ICE Qs ©
s BIOO0  BES due DA1IS/16 ol 61,543
ACCAAN 20 - CORED Rfovr g Trush Clatg WA
usn 8813317 0.18% due 07f20/28™ ol o5
CORANE 201 30EE Modgape Tt e XA
LIE ] Lasdrin 1% e D156 i B TED
TR 20T 50021 Mertgage Trust Clrte XA
ysm LIF1IE LT e D730 28" ol 1,530
ST Trusk 2017-LSTE Class ©
us S1L000 .2 due D4/0/3EY ol Wl
CHMEC Trurd $01745TE Class D
Lo 61,000 B e D40 R ol B2
TS Trut 2017LSTE Chiss §
U B0 333 due D470 ol 87014
B Truk H017-L5TE Class NACP
[IE] TOODM OUSPNdue D405 o1 53,291
CHAIC Trusk 2017:L5TK Clags XECP
usn LS 0218 e 405,133/ [ 1.} T
CIWE J01ETOR Cam &
LIk ) 000 BA du DRSLST o1 ERERL
D epharen Retidential Mertgags Trust 171 Qs A1
usn EECLEE] 1.7 due 13/ 26/08™ o5 33,178
D ephaven Residential Mertgage Trutk 2017-1 Ciass A2
Lo 15600 L0 dum 1N 6 =1 IhLETE
Faerrsi P RERRICS BOLE-53 it 36
Ui LUBES L0 duw DE25/26 14 977,410
Farvie e REMICS $016- 72 O 205
LsD L6108 1004 dus 10/2%/20 1% 103,900
Farrie htee REMICE BOL7-1] Ol T
LI ] rAMEN 300 s DSI1AL 34 £SO LA
e M REMIICS DOLT-13 Ot CA
usn LEMDE 15 due 10/25/43 FE LEFAT?
Farvie for REMICS 301742 Gl Ca
LIk o] Liai g B dum 100002 i3 LN 0
ol Rl REAMICS: 00059 Oiin LA
usn 1263645 LU0 duw 11125042 1% 1,353,517
Farvie Mt RERNICS $018:33 Dty &
usp 784,778 L0 oo 025,38 ar 10000
Fredie 3% RERIICS 2123 Tlass T8
usn LI24358 1 due 077158 14 971,500
[Freidie ac RERICE 8027 Caas 2
uin [SLRb 00 g 1O ERAG =1 ] 571,70
Wreskoe W% REVESS AT48 Claas WT
usn 100000 RSO due DE1558 14 1.00%,918
Freddie M REVECS 2750 tlass Ba
LIk o] nam 100 e DTS15000 51 BB ETS
Fracile Ma: RESICS AT Cans A
usp LTI O e DOV 2526 is I8
GOAT 20017-2 LT Clasa A1
[l I531% 3 5000 e D25 a7 [+ 7 50,48
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The accompanying notes are an irfegral part of these financial datements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS {continued )
February 28, 2019
{Expressed in United States Dallar)
M isipal od et
cur Ampunt _ Secuaity Dn Auiety Fair alue
FIKE IMCOHME SECUIRTTIES {98 1%) | continued )
ARITER STATES [91.5%) [coatinued)
AAAET AL D SECLRITIES [ R B} jrontinued)
Crmgk Woll Trust 2017 WORF Class D
LIk o] i &1l chan O L S0 2% L o
rwat Whell Trank 2017 WOUF Clagg L
s TODOD 5P e D910 ol o087
‘Gooat Woll Trusk 2017 \WORF Class F
U EET R T T T T o1 wan
o Merigage feourities Sorp Trnt J00E-IP0K Oas &
LIE ] BELOG B du DO -5 L
G5 Mergage Seour e Conp Troa IS el Oeaa f
wso pLstiii] 5 7 due 111151385 a1 9,35
5 Merigupe Seaur ity Tro 0150008 D KA
D 1926545 1. 10% due D220/ 450 ol 73,418
&5 Mortgage Senuriies Trust 2017556 Claxs XA
usm BaL117 LU cn R0 BT Bl 6206
W4 Merigage Seor ey Tt 2017047 Cas Na
LIk ) QaRETI 1.2 o DRSSO ol o
ey dehng Fusedieg LLT 20114 Clres A2
[ 4 BIZIND A8 due O7/30027" L A3,
JFMorgan thase Sommend 3l Sodgage Searities Comp, 2017.F010
=
usp Falilin] LA due DR/ T3 ad 003
IF M gan Chate Comenend sl Masgage Securities Cop, 20175010
QasC
us D000 3.7 due DRSS oo 15004
IF Bor gan Shaas Commend ol Mortgage Seouritie s Corp, 2017-FLI0
g
usn 000 4.39% du DRFIS/3YMY o1 3,906
1P Mo Chass Comemendal Moo Secur bes Trus 2014020
Dass
[IE 322071 L% due D7 ES /47N o1 1,05
JF Morgan Chase Comenendal Morgge Secur bes Trust 2007540
GassC
uin 3000 BT s 077051 =3 R
IF Mer e Chide Comaandsl Mangge Seeur i Trut 10024800
Qusa b
usn SEDO)  AATH due D753V ol B850
P Mo gan Chane Comeme ndsl Mortge Securl B Trust 200 T80
=011
(I ALHOG AT du O1SES AN 5] 1,007
¥ Mo g Chase Comenendal Maigege Securl e Towst 101 A0
OassF
] SEO00 BT due DTSN 153 57,913
1P Bor gan Chane Comemerdsl Martgepe Securi Be Triat J008LA0 Quse &
LI ] 0000 A cue OGS/ a1 0
IFMIBE Commnd sl Miangige Seoorites Tt 200508 Qas ©
usn 94000 427 due 10152 ol 92,985
JFRBE Commenoal Morgage Secures Tnaet J00%032 Gas XA
LIk o] L ey LA dun TLS ™ al 1, e
Lasndinark Runding Trud 200704 fadad
e SORDOD 3B duw 132212010 or 454,854
arintie Furdng Trust 2018.1 Class &
[IE LT TUEL e D315/ 16Y 1] ”,.14
BASTR Axuet Backed Secueltia s Trost 20007 HEL Clivs A3
[ ] 1,780,560 170 due D5f2s 3 3 15678, 289
Sigrgan Staniey Bank of Ao ca Misrill Lynch Trud 3018009 Oy Xa
uin skl A L0 b BESERMTT o1 Shalt
iargn Stunlay ik of e cn il Lynoh Trum 3007033 Clrey XA
(1] 1H3ST LAk due D5/1550" ol 138,908
Morgan Staniey Capkal | Trusdt 2010,C1 s
L] 1AM PN due RIS AT ol 18309
Sargan ftaney Caplsl § Trunt 6 um] ] Guna A
usp 12arA 1640w DRSS 40 ol 1ogar3
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The accompanying notes are an irfegral part of these financial datements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS {continued )
February 28, 2019
{Expressed in United States Dallar)
M lmtigal od b
cur Ampunt _ Secuaity Dn Auiety Fair alue
FIRED BCOIME SECLIRTTIES |58, 1% | continu e )
ARITER STATES [91.5%) [coatinued)
AARET AL D SECLRITIES [ R BN jrontinued)
Dipition Dine Mofgage Loan TrusE 3007 $ Class 141
LIk o] LAERE e due DTS2 ATY 1% L 106,516
P I01I-A e, Clis €
s G000 4.95% due D143 ol 94,405
IFRFM 20172 LLC Class AL
U 8156 3 AT e 0912528 11 Bi3a8a
PR J00S-1 L Clsan AL
LIE ] pELERE, A s 042009 s Limm
iiFAA 2016-3 LLC Flads AL
wso S B 4,204 oue 10/25/23 1s 971,206
A 20101 L0E Chaas A
usm EO7213 450 due 01725245 10 TOLETT
IRAIT 007 FLT Trust Drvs A5
usm 00 L7 due DR IRTS oo FA
TR Fertes d 006G 0 Tount e LAd
usn BOOOIE G0N due D216 10 06158
IRAL Sertes 2007 -0HS Trust Class AR
usn 1208305 17N due DRf25/37Y o8 563413
RASE Sl 007 Trunt O 413
LIE ] 1pdriga L0 e LS8 ik A
etichens) ALpet Sacuribiastion Tru 20064008 Caw A5
ysm 1A9SFH GO0 due D9/25/36 13 108119
Rosthyn Portfoli Trusk 2017.ROSS Ol &
us ERO00 A% due DRSS ol 1,939
IReriayn Portiaio Trust 2007 RO9E Cun B
Lo 5000 LT ol B, 75
i Frofeiongt Loam Friograe 200 1B LIC D B
U SOO000 34T due 11126/ oz 482,367
“SoFi Frofewional Loan Frogram 201 7B LAS S ©
[IE] 2B 415 due 1LI2E A0 % 241,733
‘S Profewionad Loan Frogram 2017-F LLC Clam 6FY
usn SO0 B cue DLA25/A0 ar a0
Springle sl Punding Trutt 2017-44 Clam &
LIk ) et i 66 i D715 o3 85,318
‘v o Aortgage e tdeniial Trug 2013102 Class A2
usn ATLOE AT due 10/25 8T o7 475,475
‘Starvenod Mortgage Redertial Trust 008002 Class &3
Lo arna T e L0V or aran
Tl e bl Parefaka Truit 2098 THIT Ssia [
Ui ASIAED S duw 11F11 240 1% 153,978
S ConPrnencat Minmgage Trust 200 7-01 Dass 4
] 1197 iy 130 e D0/ 15,50 o 113,437
RS Corrrrsercias MinrEpage Trost 300000 Qe N4
LI ] TALE0EE L1 e DS E8 0 =4 Rl
AES-Bareliys Commercal Merigags Trost 2003-CS Oamn XA
usn TOOASEY  DU3E%due D3/00/8 o1 B3,27m
S -CEgnoup Comirenoad Morbgsge Trust 200151 T O
LIk o] e T B0 duw D150/ o T3
Wisaligd DS Canibdr { Biusd LLC 201814 Ouis A2
usn ABSDOD  AOP duw D316 231 or 458,05
VAT LN LT Class AL&
wEn TEEL T 411 e 1026/ A5 11 PELOIP
Wnshinghes Mutual Mortgage Fass Thiough Cenibobes WHAALT Series
20073 Trust Oans 141
usn Lotk T e DASIRSAT =3 3,77
Washingtor Mutursl Aot -Backed Certficate s WIVARS faviet J006- 080
Trud s L&
usn 1pe5.281 6% e 082538 14 975 285
‘Wit Farga Commercial Martgage Trost 2010-C1 Gams
L] 10000 R due 1015000 ol 183,479
Wl farpo Commergisl Mortgage Trunt 2035020 Saia £
usp p i L dun DLF1/48 ol o397
Wiz Fur e Commarcial Mertgage Trust 2005-N0S4 Tasn E
usn 193000 3N due 12715 %1 160,545
Wl Farge Commerosl Morigage Trat 2006-C33 Ounn 58
win Mg 177 e (A i -} ALk

The accompanying notes are an irfegral part of these financial datements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMEMNTS {continued )
February 28, 2019
|Expressed in United States Dallar)
M isipal % of Wt
Cur Arnpunt Spcrmity Duicr Alieti Fair Vil
FIKED IMCOME SECUIRTTIES {98 1%) | continued )
ARITTEED STATIS [91.5%) [rontinued]
AARET AL D SECLRITIES [ R B} jrontinued)
Wl Fargo Commerclal Mortgage Trust 2007038 O %4
e #5118 1874 dun 07,550 m1% (] . 5EL
Wels Iange Metgage Bucoed Seoritieg J006-AR 348 Trust Corip TAd
usn GERBEE AT due 10/2536" 14 976,713
TOTAL ASSET-HALKE D SECURITIES A8
IMCHT GAGE-RACK D SECURTTIES [22.9%)
Farwis M Pl
(It 1AMSESY 1 50% cue 01700127 14 1,717,252
usn 1LEO0AR 3004 duw D4/00/37 21 1,586,717
[k ] SHISE  300% duw DG01/43 g 577,393
Ui o] HHI A 300 chw D7S00047 ii L]
win LG e 130 cuw D106 ik 190,868
UL ] AR L0004 dm DRM0AT L] BEEA00
Fratis M Gold Posl
(1L 515306 300 duw 110145 34 LABRLSHY
LIk o] 1588400 150 de OR/00 /06 ii La3, 367
1L o] PR ER ] B e 11700056 18 ERe N )
TOTAL MORTGAGE-BADUED SECUIRITIES 16,388 111
TOTAL UNITID STATLS &5.077, 10
TOTAL I ED IMCCHE SECLIITIES [Cod LSO 08,547 0 0y, e
TOTAL INGESTMENES [Cost USDPL3TS,547) 93 1% (L5 02, ARR
CASH ANDCTHER ASSETS IN EXCESS OF LIABILITIES ] 1,381 968
NET ASSATS laadr [t TLATS AT

L]
izj

i
4]

Fizating Rateas of Febnarsy 33, 2013,

1344 Secuity « Security gl Irom regisbralion under 1584 o the Seouri b A% of 1333, These weouri B oy be reisid in
trancsctions exerept from regictration, bployEyitn guaified nstitutions Buyes. Unfess sthersd 1 indeated thete seourfties soe nok

conskdered o b (Hgued,
Wariktle Ratie of ol February 28, 2020,
Siw ole w2 ol Februney 38, MG

Pungd Level Forwaed Forelpn Currercy Exchange Contracts

Pt Uniealized
Nedional  Setdement Nezional Appreciagion/
By Comatorparty Aoourk  Oate ___ Sell _ Amount {Depredizion)
wrt Weomm ifrothen Hariman & Co AR oholsoR o (4,067} uip [FE]
W e trmrs e el Haeriman & O 000 0RO USD [LELT) )
L Broem ifrothes Mariman & Co. 1, mES oRdane  wip (15,388 L]
(] e trmrs e eiliaped Harriman G 8] LITT-GTE I (68,141 i
[11] [aL2]
IFY Monthly Distribution Clacs Forward Forelgn Currency Exchange Contracts
Mot Unimealized
Ketional Settierent Ketinal Appretimicn/
By Aroourt ___Date ___ Sell ___Amount {Deprecistior)
wt ey Biroithatey Hanrd man & Co S Y- oasfatis o 5T [11]
Y sk M 043,190,396 OIS0 USD (RSIRI0N} (18,156)
1] Citibank A A DGO WY (10712,100) a7
o (0,7
1PY Semil-Annual Distritartion Class Forward Fors gn Cunmendy Exchange Contracts
Pet Uriealized
Ketional Settipment Ketknal Apprecigion/
By L party # Date Sall ] |Depreistion)
[ Citibank Ma, [RFET T [T T T R E TT R T (T 00N
L152:) St Nk a10.06r onMaRNEe e L ¥ 2K s ] LN
uso_1es 08
Currersy legerd
¥y Rt Vet
s U Dollar

The accompanying notes are an irfegral part of these financial datements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

CRGAMIZATION

Goubleline Total Retum Fund {the “fund”) is 2 series trust of the Aikko AM Offshone Funds, an open-ended unit toust
establishid by 2 supplemamtal trust deed dated Febmuary 8, 2007 (the “Supplemental Trust Deed” ), under the laws of the
Cayrran Iskands. Nikko A% Offthore Funds was established by a master trust deed dated October 15, 2012 {the ~Saster
Trust Reac” L under the liws of tha Cayman 1slands and is Rearsed with the Cayman tlands Monetary Authority pursuent
o section & 1ja] of the Mutval Funds Les (2009 Revinion). The Fund commenced operations on March 30, 2017,

The Fund's assets ane managed on a day to day basis by Kikko A Global Cayman Limited {the “Manager™). The Manager
delegates imvesiment maragement cuties 1o Nikko Assel Management Co, [td, [the “inwestment Managee'). The
Imeestment Manager delegates imvesiment manragmment dutles to DoubleLine Capial P, (1he *Sub-mvestment Manager ).
The admanistration of the Fund i delegated to Brown Srothers Hamiman & Co. (the "Custodian” and “Sub-Admiristrator],
a limited parinership organized vnder the laves of the State of New Yok

The irvestment objective of 1he Fund is to achimee a mid to lon g term total retum throwgh Incosme and capital appredation,
Under normal dicurstanoes, the Seriet Trost shall immest ower 505 of its net asets in residential and commerdal
morigage badeed seounities, actively allocated betwesn agency and non agency securities.

Thess investments may indude mongage-backed securities of any maturity or type, nduding thoss guarantess by, or
sexsured by collaterd that is guarantesd by, the United States Sovemnment, its agendies, instrementalities or sponsored
corporations, and privately issued mortgage-backed securiiies rated @t the time of purchase Aa3 or bigher by Moody's or
- or higher by 38 or of an equivalent rating by any other nationally recognized statistical rating organization ["NRSAO7)
that has baen recognized by the U5 Securities 2nd Excharge Comenission of unrated seouritles that are determined by the
Imeestment Manager or ifs delegates to be of comparable quality. These Evettments also include, among others, US
Governmen! monigage pass-through securities. collnteralized morgage oblgations, mubticlass pass-through securities,
private mortgage pats-through securities.

The Series Trust may alsoimeest in short tenm nvestments, such a5 notes ssued by U5, Government sgencies, and bonds,
delt securities and other ficed intome instruments isued by US. Govemmental of private-sector entities, of other asset-
backed obligations, collateralized loan obligations, and obligations of the US Gowmemem and s agendes,
instrumentalities and sponsred conponations.

The Series Trust may imvest in bonds of any oedit quality, induding those that are a2 the time of ivasvbment unrated or
rated 85+ of lower by 5&F or Sal or lover by Moody's or of an equivalent rating by any other NRSAO, Bonds and fiued
income instrumentt rafed below imaestment grade, or fuch indtrumerns that ace vnrated and determined by the
Imvestmerd Manager o its celegates to be of comparable cuality, are high yielg, high risk bonds, commonly known as jurk
bords’. The Series Trust may imvest wp to a thied of its net assets in junk bonds, bark loans and agignments that are either
rated below investment grade of are ureated but determined by the investmer? Manager or s delegates 1o be of
comparabls quality, and credit defaul? swaps of companies in the high yield unieerse.

The Series Trust may imeest @ portion of its net assets @ imverse fioater securities and intenest-only and principal-only
dEfuriied

Under the tenms of the Supplemental Trdt Deed and the Master Trust Geed, CIBC Bark and Trus Company {Cayman]
Limited (the “Trustee” and the “Administrator™] is named as Trustes of the Fund,

The Marager appoanted Mitsubishi UF] Morgan Stanley P Seourities Co., Uid 1o act as Agent Company {the “Agent
Company™} and the Manager appomnted Mizsubwhi UF) Morgan Stanley F3 Securities Coy, Lbd and SMBC Trust Bark L2d. to
act as Distributors {the = Distributors™] of Units in lapan.

SURPARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Fund s an Irvestment Company that follows the accounting and reporting gukdance in FASE Accoumting Standards
Cocifica tion 946,

Uise of Extimates
The accompanying finandal statesrenss have been prepared in accordance with accounting prindples generally accepied in
the United $tates of Amenica (U5, GAAFTL The preparation of finandal statements in accordarce with LS. GAAR requines
the Furd™s maragement to make estimated and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of as8ets and labilities and
disclosures of contingerd assets and liabdities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

SURAPAARY OF SPENIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continaed)

Use of Estimates frontinued)
nevenues ang experses during the reporting period, Actusl results, inchuging the ultimate amourt reallzed vpon the sle of
Fadr valued investrnerds, could differ from thote egtimates and woh differences may be significand.

Buis af Accounting

Security and coniractual rarsactions are recorded on @ iradefcontract-date basls. menest incoire i necorced on an
effiective yield basis, net of ary applicablle withholding ta intenest expense and other oopenses are necorded on 20 aconual
basis. Realized gains and losses from securily tramsactions are computed on the basis of the senge cost of the securities
sold or cowered, Changes in the waluation of imesiments are recorded in the Stat t of O lors as unreali
npgreciation of deps eciation.

Valiation of investnenis
Bonds and other debt securities, induding resiricied securities (other than short-ferm obligations but ncluding listed
istuex) are fir valued at their Lt sale price in the principal market i which wch secorities sre normally traded, on the
basis of vabuations furrished by a pricing service, use of which has been approwed by the imestment Manager, or i no sale
has oowmed, the bid price on the valuation date at provided by brokers wher are market makers in the secourities. All debt
securities with less than 12 months 1o maturity date, bn prindiple shall be: fair valued using an amontined cost effected by 2n
effectie yield acoumulated/amontization method to their maturity date with adjustments based on companson with
marke: prices a5 requined,

In accordance with the authoritathe guidance on fair value measurements and disclosures under LS. GAAR, the Fund
dizchoses the fair vadue of its investments in a hieranchy that priositizes the inputs to valuation tedhniques used fo measure
the fair vabue, Thet hierarchy gives the Mghest peiority tovabuations based upon uracjusted guoted prices in active markets
for idemtical assets or lisbdities (Levad 1 measurement} and the lowest piority to valustions basesd wpon unobsenable
inpats that are significant to the valiation {Level 3 measurements), The guidance establishes theen leveds of the fair valee
hiexarchy as follows:

s Leyeld | = Ipuls that reflecs unbdjusted quoted prices in active markels for identical nvesirments that the Pund
has the abdity to access a1 the measurement date

= Lleweld 2 - Inputs other than quoted peices that are significant and obserable for the asset or Rability either
directly or indirectly, induding inputs in markets that arenot considered to be active:

= Lewed 5 = Inputs that are sigrificant and unobsenalle.

IPyrtd dre wded i bpplying thie wiiEus viduitsan tedhnigues bid Broadly tefer t (i dddumptions that madke! participants
s b nake valuation dedision s, ancluding assumptions about risk. inputs may indude price information, spedlic and broad
it data, liquidity statistics, and other factors. A firendsl insbrument's lvel within the Tsir velue hierarchy B baded upon
the lowest bevel of any input that is signficart 1o the fair value measurement, However, the determanation of what
coratituies “obienable” feguires significan judgment by the nwestment Manager, The mvesiment Manager cornsicers
observable data 1o be market dats which is readily mvailable, regudardy disributed or updated, relisble ard verifiable, mot
proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are setively irmoboed in the relevar market. The cotegorization of a
financial anst rumsent within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the iestrument and does nat necessarily
correspond to the Imsesbmert Marager's perceied risk of that instrument,

Imemstmerds whose values are based on the cuoted market prices in acthe markets, and therefore classified within Level 1,
winild incluce actively troded equities, certain US. givermment and sovereign obligations, ard certain assel-backed
securities and collateralized morigage obligations. The invastment Manager would not adjust the guoted prios for such
i T, Even in Situations where the Fund beld & lBage positeon and & sale could remsonably impact the quoted price.

Imemstments that trace in markets that are not considered to be active, but ane walued based on quoted marked prices,
diealer quotations of alermathee pridng sources supported by cbservable inputs are classified within Levd 2. Thise indude
imvestment-grade debt securities, short-term irvestments and forsard foreign currency epachange contracts and may abo
include cenain asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations, As Level 7 irvestments indude positions
that ane mot traded in acthve markets andjor are subject 1o transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted o reflect
illiguigity andfor non-transferatdllity, which ane generally based on available market information.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

SURAPAARY OF SPENIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continaed)

waknation of imvestmends [cont inued)

Imvpstmerds dassified within Leviel 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as thay would trade infrecuently, Level 3
instruments would inchede certain asset-badked seourities and collateraliced morgage obligations. As obeervable prices are
not available for those seourithes, the Fund would wse valuation technigues to derboe the fair vabue

The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the itk associat ed with investing
in those securities.

The following table presents the finandal instruments canried an the Statement of Assets and Liabilities by caption and by
level within the valustion hierarchy & of Febrary 38, 2018 Further dessifications of the finandal Enstruments are
prisented in the Portfolio of nwetments. There were no movements between level during the year.

Acoens at Falr Valus Falr Valus at
Ll 1 Level 2 L] 3 February IR, 2019

Fimied 0 ome [EF] - [E7] VIS R (=] - S0 MO A

Forward Foregn Curnancy

Exthange Contrasn, - 2250 - TI50

Toaad (£ - [T EF] [ T 0095132

Ligbilities. 55 Fair value Fair Vol 5%
Lewil L Ll 3 Lewwwl 3 Felbiruany IR, D019

Farward Foregn Cunnimdy

Eschange Contracts 150 - ush HEA uED - usD EiEr ]
Total [ - AsD 05,38 LED - 5D TI5, 348
Foneign Currendy Trontfation

Amaets and liabilities held fn currencies other than Urited States Collar ["US0" or the “Functional Curfency™ ) are trarslated
to the Functionsl Currency &t the rate of E‘lﬁ'\tnF pf-!ln!i‘ﬂ at the firandal statemen date. Inowme and expenies sre
trarslated #t the rote of exchange prevailing at the date on which the income or expense i inourmed. Realized and
wnreslined gaind and losied arising on forsign turnency irbrdadtiond are induded in the Stetement of Operations in 1he
perael in witich they oceur,

The Fursd coes nol solse that partion of he resclid of operations resulting from dharges in it EncRange 185 o
investments from the fluctustions ariging from changes in market peices of securities held. Sudh fluctuations are induded
with the et nealiced and urseslined gain of ks froam imeestrrent 5.

Income Taees

Under the cunrent laws of the Cayrman Islands, there are no incomes, withbolding, capital gains or other taces payable by
the Fund. In eersin jurisfictions atber than the Cayman Blands, forsign taaes may be withheld ot source on dhidends and
interest received by the Fund Capital gains desived by the Fund iin such jurisdictiors generally will be exempt from foreign
incoae o 'ﬂillﬂ'ﬂﬁ'l“,!lﬁt‘! ot aource. The Furd irterds to condwet its affairs duch that it will not be subject to hoome 1
in ey juissicEan, As 8 reslt, no provise for ncome taues has been made in the fnencial fatements, Unitholders may
e 1amed o their proportisnate thare of the Fund's tax beis intome Based an thedr indnidual droumitanoes.

The Fund follows the authoritstive guidance on acounting for and ditdosure of uncertsinty in tax positions {Finandal
Mzpunting Standards Board (“FASE”) - Acepurting Standards CociSeateon TA0), which recuires the Mana ger 1o deterimine
whether & tan posifion of the Fund is mane likely than not to be wasined upon exarination by the applicable ting
autharity, nduding resclution of any related appesls or litigation processes, based on the techrical ments of the position,
Far tax positiont meeting the more ely than not threeshold, the tae benefit recognized in the firendal staternsnts i
recuced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelifood of being realiced upon ultimate settleren
with the relevant taxing suthority, The Marsger bt determined that thore is minimal or no effect on the finandal
staternent s being under this authorititiee guidanos.

Forward Foreign Curreroy Exchange Controcis

The Fund may enter into fareand foreagn currency exchange contracts 1o hedge against foresgn curency exchange rate
risks on ol of 8 partion of non-USD densmrinated imeestments or for effident portfalis manbgement purposes. When
erering irto a forward foreign currency exchange contract, the Furd agrees to receive of deliver @ fized cuantity of
formign cuffency for B Sgried-upon price of an agreed futune date, These contracts are vahebd dailly, ard the Fund's fe
ecuity theren, representing urdealiped appreciationf|depreciation) on the contracts as medsure by the differeance
between the foewerd forsign cummency exchange rates ol the dates of entry into the contrects and the forwend rates ol the
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

SURAPAARY OF SPENIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continaed)

Fanveard Forsign Currzacy Exchange Contrals (coatinued]
meporting date, i5 included im the Statement of Assets and Uabalities, Aealized and unrealiped geins ard losses ane induded
in the Statement of Operations,

These instrements irmobe market disk, credit risk, or both knds of risks, in excess of the amount recognized in the
Statemert of Assets and Wabilities, Risks arise from the possibla inability of courtenparties to meet the terms of their
comracts and from mevement in ourrency and wscurities walees and @nterest rafes. in addition to the Clans level hedging,
the Fund had realized gain of LED 1842 on 15 forward forelgn currency exchange cortracts during the year with an
average notional of LS0 36,312 and an average teom to maturity of 10 days. The fund had net realived lows of US0 6R0, 064
o 44 forward forelgn currency exchangs contracts held at the JFY Monthlly Distribation Class Hedged leval during the year
with an average notional of USS 5,209,458 and an average term fo maturily of 34 days. The Ffund also had realized loss of
US0 2,553,612 on 42 forwerd foresgn currency exchange contracts held at the JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Cliss Hiesdged
leved during the year with an average notional of US0 31,537,002 and am average term (o madurity of 3% days

Cash ond Forefgn Currency
Cish and farsign currnen oy comprises ol curtenoy held with Srown Brothers Marfimen & Co., and owerright and other short
term placerents with other firandal institutions.

The net assets of the Fund afe dividesd nta JPY Meonthly Distribation Class Units, JPY Semi-Annual Distribation Class Urits,
W50 Morthly Citribution (lass Units and USD Semi-Annual Distribution Clats Units. The Lnits are derominated in United
States Dollar and Japarese Yen IPY Monthly Distribodson Class Units, JPY Semi-Anrmual Distributesn Class Units, USD
Monthly Gistribution Class Lnits and USD Semi-Annual Distribution Cless Units ane available to an eligible imestor wha is
APy e s, Coaporation of entity which i not i) & citicen of resident of the LS, & pariner ship organiced of existing in the
UL, or any corparation, trust of oiher entity organiced undér the laws of or existing in the US; {i] perisn or entity resident
& dornicled in the C.I'fl'ﬂ-'l slands iEltluli‘l‘ any object of a dharitable thus oF power oF an exempled oF non-resadent
Cayman Idands company]; (i) vrable to subscribe for or hold Units withoart wiolating applicable laws, or (i a oustodian,
Rominees, oF trustee faf any person, SOFporation of ertity desaribed in {i) to (] abawe

The Manager may determing to issue one o mace clindes of Units of the Furd withaut prior notice to of wiitten conmsent of
the Uirithold ers.

Al of the pet pssets pitributable to JPY Monthly Distribution Class Umits, JPY Sermi-Arnuel Distribution Oevs Lnits Class,
S0 Mot hly Ditribu tion Cles Units and U0 Serni- Arnuel Distribution Class Unily, ane held by twes Urishalders.

IPY Merthly P Semi-anoua WSO Monthly  USD Semi-ancual
Dititation Class  Distribution Cats  Distribution Oass  DEgrAbution Ol T Furd

Balance a Fabruary 28, 2018 LED 1T3GE53F USh 43574453 USD EGBG3EF?  LED IDSE549F  UED 55505756
Sas vt B8 g Byl 1,438.155 11343 60,580 13319,074 LARLIR
Risdimetiorn during the year [EEELE ] AR AT [IRSF AT §3,009,212) (4,632 654)
Cestribtinns {IR03E (333450 {175,331} (380121} {955
(Wi s ] dodr G asel in not vty

FEtedting brom Rt {52LEEL) {L922.15H LB E06,135 13,756,753

et Asaats b Fabreary 28, 3019 VD RARSIIE  WSD B6AFRO00L  USD 2762565 USD 33,351,368 LisD 71495, 800

Iumier of Linits in ivees at

Flwuary I8, 2008 135405 ATE 159 9,80 3.307.928 4,606,335
e nsied dharing Eha el 13275 LME 1,276 134,461 EHE
Ly, rideemad during the yair (505560 [0 TIE) 61 S60) [339,636) eRF T
IMuimaheer of Lira b5 in i ol

Fabruary I8, 2019 I AT5NS JE0, 0T 1322, 763 L12bEET
It Asart Wl s Unitat

Fewunsy T8, 2019 LDy BREE ULSD BoTE  USD 87 LA A0S
Subserpphions for Units

JFF Monthily Distribution Class Units and JFY Semi-Annial Disribution Class Units were firss issued a1 an initial Bssue price
of APy 100000 per Lanit, The misimnum mnitisl subsaiption Tor JBY Morhly Distiltnaion Class Uniss ard JPY Semi-Anrual
Distributaon Class Urdts par subsoriber s 1 Unit or mofe, and in multiples of 1 Units thereatter,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

LIMITS {ecntinand)

Subscriptions for Unit fcomtinwed)
LA Mot hly Distribation Class Urets ard USD Seemi-Annual Gistribution Class Units were Tiest Bsued at an inttial issue price
of L&D 1000 per Urit. The minimum iritial subsoription for USD Monthly Cistribution Cless Units and LSD Semi-anmual
Qistribution Class Units per subseriber Is 10 Units or more; and in muliiples of 1 Unit thereafier,

Thir Manager may wanee o change the mirimum inftial and additioral subscription srounts set forth above In its sole
dizcretion from fime to time,

Uit Redemptions
The Furs recoygnices redemptions in accrdanoe with the suthoritative guidarce on distinguishing liabilities from eguity.
Recemptions, whether supressed a5 United States Collar, Japanese ¥en or Units, are recognized 3s liabilities when each of
the lapaneie Yen and United Siates Dollar Unit amounts requested in the redemption notice becomes fioed, whidh
generally may poour either af the time of tha receipt of the noticn, or on the last day of a fiscal year, depending on 1he
nature of the reguest. As a rewlt, redemptions paid after the end of the year, but bated upon yedr end net atsets sre
reflected as recemptions peyable at Februany 28, 3015 There were USD nil and IFY nil of redemptions payable as ar
February 28, 2018 induded &5 Fayable for Units redeemed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

Repurchase af Units
Uinits may b rppurchased a1 the option of Unitholders on sach Repurchase Day,

Unitholders wishing 1o hawe Winits repurchased must send o completed Repurchase Notice 1o the Dlstributors so a5 to be
received by the Cistributors no later than 3200 pom {Tokyo time] on the relevant Aepurchase Bay. The Distributors will
send the completed Repurchase Notices to the Sub-admiristrator by no Later than 6:00 por, {Toky tieme] on the rdevan?
Repurchase Bay or by wwch other time as the Sub-Administrator rmay in any particular case defermine

1f the: refevant Aepurchase Notice s not reoeived by the Sub-administrator by the ndevant time, the Repurchase Motice will
b hdd owir urdil the rext following Aepuchaie Day afer the Aepurchase Motios is received and Uinits will then be
recesmed at the rdevant repurchase price applicable on that Repurchase Gay.

A Repurchase Notice, onoe given, is inrevooable.

Compulsory Redempd fon

In the ewert that the Trustee or the Mareger thall determine that any Units of any dass of a Series Trust are being held by
o for the benefit of a person who s not an Eligible Inwestor for such Series Trust or that sudh holding would cuse the
Trust or the Senies Trust to be required to register, be subject to tax or wiolate the bews of any jurisdiction, or if the Trustee
o tha Manages has reason to doubt the legitimacy of the source of monies wed to fund the subsongrtion or purchase of
sech Undts, or for whatewer reason (whidh may not be diclosed by the Trsiee or the Manager to Unitholders) that ihe
Trustes or the Manager consiclers appropriate 21 its absolute discretion having regard to the imeresis of the Unitholders of
the relevant Class or the Unitholders of the Sonies Trest as a whole, then the Manager, after consultation with the Truster,
may dinect thie holder theneof to sall {subpect 10 the provisions desoribed balow in the section headed STrarsTer of Linifs™)
such Units within 10 days and provide to the Trustee and the Manager evidenoe of such sale, failing which the Manager
may receem sidh Linits.

Termnalion of ihe Fund
Lipon fenrination, fhe Manages will eakoe all the assets of the Fund, and after paying out o retaiving sdeguate provision
for all liabdlities properly payable ang retairing provision for the costs of the Tenmanation, the Trustes shall gistibute the
proceeds of that realization to the Unithclders proportionately to their respective interests in the Fund as of the date of
termination of the Fund,

Dysiribudions fo U ol ders

The Manager may, from Sme o teme, inits sole discretion, dedare distributions from September 3017, Sistribution will be
dechared on each Distribution Record Dete ard calculated on each Bx-Distnbution Date Distribution Pericd is o peried
commercang from the calendar day following the preceding Cieiribution Record Date and ending on and induding the
Distribution Record Date. The distributions will be paid on the relevent Ditribution Payenent Date, provided that such
ameunt [if any) declaed with respect to the eelevant Class of Units in respect of the applicable Sistribution Perkod shall
winly be paid out of the Series Trust™s ned incomme, reslized and unrealiend capital gains and any distribufable funds of the
Series Trust attributable 1o such Class of Units as determined by the Manager.

95/192



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

LIMITS {ecntinand)

Distribiations o Unilhelders foomtimwed)

Tha declaration of distributions to Unitholders reduces the Class Lvel Net Aset Valus por Uinit without any comesponding
charge in the number of Class Level Units per Unitholder, This resulis in a Unitholder's overall investment in the Fund
betng reduged, In addition, any cistributions during a pariod which are in ecess of the Fund's ret incease in net msets
resulting from operations resulis mn s panion of the dovtabution being retunn of capstal.

The amourt of distribustions, if ary, will be determined by the Manager in its role gisoretion, and no regeesemation or
Ruaranien is made that a distribution will be made in respect of each or any Distribution Period,

Copitafnnlian

Ther Net Asset Value per Unit is caloulated for each Dealing Day | each Valuation Day, or such other day o days as the
Manager may from time to time determine in respect of the Seriei Trust), by dividing the difference in value between the
Fund's assets and labilities {including acorued fees ard expenses of the Fund) by the number of Units setsianding,

Ther Trust Deed stipulates that the nurber of Units to be issued in the Fund shall be unkrated a5 the Manager shall
determing and shall be without par value,

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INS TRUNMENTS

Accounting Standerd Codification [ASC) B15-10-50 reguires didclosures sbout derivative instruments snd hedging actinities.
It reyuires that the Fund disclose: a) how and why an entilty uses derivative irstrumeants, b) how denvatie mauments and
rilated hidged Hefm are stcourted for snd €] how defivetne irstruments and relfated hedged items affed an entity’s
fanancial position, finarcial periorm ance and cash flows,

The fund trapsacts fonward defivative instruments prinarily for hedging purposes with each instrument’s prrary risk
enpaur = being forsign exchange risk. The forward forsign currency exchange contracts hed by the Fund do not gualify 53
hedges for accounting purposes urder the reguirements af ASC 815 The fair value of these defvetive instiurments is
inchuded i the Statement of Asets and Labilities with dhanges in fair value reflected a5 realired gaire/jlostes) or net
charge in unrealined apprecistion depredation] on defvatives within the Statement of Operations (Note 2

Thie Fund mby enter into an IMemational Swapd and Dedvitiee Assodstion, Inc. Master Agreernent {“IS0A Mister
Agreement”] with lts courerpaniees in order to mitigate counberpany sk, The 1504 Master Agreement is fypically
regotisted by the Fund and R4 courtenparsies, containing the b-lsteral terms and concitions for ol subsesguent defrative
trarsactions, The S04 Master Agreement allows for the netting of all amours owed o o dus fron counterparty into @
dingle nit paymnent if & crecRt et of default thould ot

At February 28, 2019 the Furd had entered nto the following derivative ssets by countenparty net of amounts available
fior offset under a Master Netting Agreemernt {~MA37] and met of any colfateral receivied by the Fund:

DT e ARLERE DRty e Fots-cash Cash BT Banourt of
Counterpety Subject 1o 3 MRA _ Avalsbie for Ofies Collatersl Received Collatersl Received Devivative Asiets”
Bt Besthars Haesiman R 0o LSD G0 [EIE ] -L5D e =
Chibark A, —_ 2,241 LD aay =y P -
Teoaad usp 2,250UsD {2,250 UsD ) —sn -

Al Febeuary 28, 2019 the Fund had ertened into the foflowing deriative fab@itis by counterparty ret of amounts avilatde
fior offset under a MNA and net of any collatersl pledged by the Fund:

Derbative Dprbeatives Mearcath Cash et Amourt of
Counterparty Liablixies Arrallatde for Offort Collateral Fledged Coftateral Pledged Derbaative
Subjen ta MKA Liakifizies'
Brown Brothers Mariman & Co. UsD 1SLED [ETIE) -L50 -LED 152
Cibank NA 05,174 {2,247 - - 03537
Total uso 205,328 USD {2, 250) USD — S0 - us0 03,078

b o et e T WP P B Ty B 0P et OUTILEFDATY N e even o Defat
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRURENTS [continund)

Al Febeuary 28, 2019 the Fund had erteded into the following dervatives:

Mzt Derivathoes Uiabdlity Dervatives
Drabeativet Satement Saternent
Mot Acooayted fior a5 of Asuets and of Assett and
Instriansenis Ligkifitir Lo ation Fair value Liakilitied Logation Fair Walue
Forward foragndurranty  Unraalized apprasiation L realiped dinw et 3800
escharpd donkricis o Farweir d Bariign an forward Sl
{Curranoyg Risk) CAFTENCY duchangi LG LI50  currency eschangs [E+] {0, EE)
COPAT TR EORLTACER
The effect of derivative o the 5 of Op lons for the year ended Februany 28, 3015:
Chanpe in Wnoealized
Lo ation of Healived Appredation or
Dervstived et Accounted Gin or Lt Gain or [Lott) |Depreistion) en
for asHe Incirusmeni s oon [Dher hoathves on Desiwatives Diertvathees
it reakinind kbia on Sarwand Bareign
Forward foragn curnanty LTy fachangs conbracts;
PR aNge Loty charipe in wrpalised aggeaciation
{Currimgy Risk) | depricistion] o forwird foragriunmty LGS0 (L6254 WSO [2306,00E1)
aschange torkracts

TAAMAGERENT FEES

The Manager i4 entitled S receive out of the astets of the Series Trust a maregement fee of 8 total up to CUERR per anrurm
(03 per nrum in respect of fee for the Manager, 0255 per annuim of the Net Asset Value up to USD 400 million #nd
02256 pirr annum of the Net Astet Value over USD 400 million in redpect of fer for the investment Menages, and (1405 per
arum of the Met Asset Value up 1o USD 400 million and D555 gar arnem of e Ket Asset Value ower USD 00 million in
respect of fee for the Sub-imestment Manager] of the Net Asset Value accreed on, and caloulsted as af, each Valuation
Dy and paysble morihly &0 scredes, In sddition, the Manager i alio erfitled to b reimburied out of the assets of the
Series Trust for any expenses incurred by it in the proper performance of its powers ard duties as permitied under the
Master Trust Deed. During the year erded Februany 28, 2019, the Manager carned fees of USD 543,085, of which USD
37,70 s s1ill outstancing a3 of February 28, 2015,

Thi Manager will pay the {ees of the reestment Manager cut of its fees, The ivestmerd Manager will be resporsible for
paying the fees of the Sub-imestment Menager snd any of the nvestment Manager's delegates or ofhier perties appointed
by the Irreestment Marager to perfonm i1s functions in respect of the Sefies Tiust,

CUSTODAN AND SUB-ADRINISTRATOR'S TEES

The fund has 8 oustedy and sccounting agreernent with Beown Brothers Harriman & Co. (the “Custodian” and “Sub-
Adinistrator”) for which the Custodian receives a fee caloulated and paid momthly based on total assets and tramaction
wabumme,

Thee Custodion ard Sub-Adrinistrator is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust an administretion fee
(inchuching trarsfer agent fee) calculated based on the Net Asset Value 3s @ each Valuaton Day #t the followirg anrual
rate

- QLOTH up to (ard incheging) USD 250 millien;

- LD upr bo [and induding) USD 500 million;

- (LO5% ceer USD 500 millicen,

Such admiristration fee is payvabie monthly i amceaes, and subject 19 the minimorn anrusl fee of USD 60,000, The Sub-
Adrrimistrator s also entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Toust fees for cunnency aceinisiration and execution
sergices gt the rate of 0.05% per arnum of the Mek Asset Vabue of the relevar Urat Class, subject 1o the mirimum anmual
fee of USE 50,000 In acdition, the Custadian and Sub-Aaminisrator s abso entitled to receive customary safekeaping foes
amd trarmaction charges. All sut-of-pocket experses of the Custodian and Sub-Aderinistrator shall alse be borre by the
Series Trust, During the year ended Febreary 28, X019, the Custodian sarned fees of USD 147,064, of which LSD 24513 s
still sutstanding as of Februsry 28, 2019,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

THUSTEE FEES

The Trustes & entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust 3 combined fee at the rale of 0.015% per annum of
the Net Asset Valee acoruest on, and caloulated as a1 each Valuation ay and payable quarterly in arrears, subject 1o a
miinimuam annusl fee of USD 15,0000 Curing the year snded February 28, X119, the Trster sarred fees of USD 15,000, of
whach USD 3,805 Is vl outstanding as of February 28, 2015,

AGENT COMIFANY'S FEES

The Agent Company @ entitled to redeive out of the assets of the Series Trust o fee at the rate of 002 per annum of the
Net Asset Value acorved on, and calculated 23 at, each Vahation Qay and payable guarterly in anears, Guring the year
ended February 28, K119, the Agent earned foes of WSD 15,973, of which USE 2,356 i stilf outstanding as of Felbruary 28,
2015,

The Cistrintors &ne entithed torecehvie oul of the ssaets of the Seried Trest o fee ot therate of 0605 per arswm of the et
Asnet Value accrued on, snd caloolated as at each Viahwation Day and payable quasrterdy in arnears. During the year ended
February 28, 2019, the Distributors esrred feed of LISD 479,192, of whidh USD 70,257 is still outstanding as of February 28,
2015

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES

This costs and experdes in connection with the establishment of the Sees Trost and the offering of the Units, together
with the stablishment of the Trust, incheding the crts and expenies of prepering and printing afy protpectus or
explanatony brochured resuired, were estimated ot lsundh 16 samourt 19 appromenately USD 140000, Such costs and
expenses will be amortised within the first five (5) financis years of the Series Trust unless the Trustee decides that some
ke methed shall be spplied. The Admiristeator receiees USD 1 500 per arvum for FATCA / CRS complianes serices.

FINANCIAL RISK PAANAGEMENT

The Fund's setivities expose it to & vaniety of firsndal fisks: marke? fsk finduding pice ek, intertet rate ik, and currency
risk), oreit risk and houidity risk

Mokl Brik
Al irvestinents present a risk of lpss of capital. The Investment Manager moderates this risk theough 2 caneful selection of
segurities ond other finencial instrument s

The Fund's investrment manrsgement process is dessribed in Note L The primery detenranant of the Fund's ability S meet
its objectree of mid to long term capital appreciation while earning income by depencent on the performance of the
imvestimend in the resigential and eommbrgal rorgepe-backed securities.

The valuis of the Funds investmers are ffected by & nuarber of factons, induding but not limited to, drengesin the wider
econoeny, finarcial ard ourency markets, foregn cufrency exchange rates, terest fate movements and ciedit ratings of
debt peuers. The Fund erters imo forward contracts which to virying degrees. repredenrt & mradest sk in excess of the
ameunt reflected on the Fung®s Statement of Assets and Liabelities, The notional amourt of the comeact represents the
extont of the Fund’s panticpation in these finardal instrements, Market risks assockated with such contracts anise due o
the porssible mevemerds in fonsign currency exchange rates underbying these instrueents,

Driher prarkiet and oreci risks inclhude the possilbility that there may e an illigued market for the contracts, that the change
in the value of the contrac may not disectly cormelate with changes in the value of the underlying currencies or that the
coanierparty 1o 8 forward contract defaulis on its obligation to perfomm under the ferems of the contract. The Fund's
exposune to loss due to counterparty non-performance on open futures, foreards, seap and options comracts i imited 1o
the unrealined apprecistion inhenent in seth finandal instruments which are recogrized in the Stdlemerd of Assets and
Liakdlities.

Assel-backed securilies fmvestarent gk

Aszat-backed securities invesiment have the risk that borrowsers may default on the cbligations that undedlie the asset-
backed security and that, during periods of faling interest rates, anet-backed seourities may be called or prepaid, which
may result in the Sevies Trest having to reirvest procends in obher investments at a lower interest rate, ard the risk that
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

the impaarment of the value of the collsteral underlying a seadity im which the Series Trust mnvests {due, for exaemple, 1o
nor-payrrent of koars ) will result 2 reduction in thevalue of the soourity,

FINANCEAL RISK PAANAG EMENT {continued)

Comeeatmiion nsk

The Series Trust immests ssbstartially in bonds isued by WS agendes in accordance with iy prindpal imeestmen?
strategies, Because such secunties are issued by 2 limited pumber of government agenciss, any actual or potential
digruption {o thowe agendes could present a risk 1o the Series Trust. Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, which are other
gewernment -sponsored Bsuers of morgage-back securities similar 1o those guaranieed by Girnie Mae, suffered such a
disruption in the mortgage orisis of 2007 - 3008 and were placed under federal conservatonship at that tinne. Ginnie Mae
securities, unlikbe those of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, ane backed by the full faith and oredit of the LS govemment and
are sebfect to the risks of LS, govemment securities, Smillar fo other issuers, changes to the firancial congition or orecia
rating of the LS, goverrment may caute the value of the Seriet Trust's saposure to ULS. sgendes seaarities to dedine.

Morigage-backed securities risk
Mortgage-backed securities represent imteresis in “pook” of mortgages and are subject to oredit, imerest rate,
pripayment and extension risk. Mortgage-backed secwrities react differently 1o dhanges in interest rates than other bords
and the prices of mortgage:backed securities may reflect acverse economic and market conditions. Small movements kn
interest rates {both ncreases and decreases) may guiddy and sigrificantly reduce the value of certain mortgage-backed
securities, Defaull or bankrupicy of a counterparty 1o a fo-be-annourced tramsaction would espose the Senes Trust to
possible ks,

Morigoge relafed and Other Adsel -Bocked Secwities rick

Cortsin Funds may imvest in mortgage-redated and other asset-backed securiies that diredtly or indirectly represent a
participation in, of are secured by and payable from, loans on real property. Mortgage-related securities are created from
pook of redidential of commercial manigage loand, induding mortgage bans made by drvings and loan institutions,
morigage bankers, commercial banks and others. These securities provide a monthly payment which conssts of both
interest and prindpal. intenest may be detenmines by fined or adjustabde rates. The rate of prepayments on underdying
mortgages will affect the price and volatility of 2 morigagerelated seourity, and may have the affect of shortening or
extending the efective durstion of the security relative to what wes antidpated af the time of purchsse. The timely
paymrent of principal ard interest of cenain mortgage-related seourities is guarartesd with the full faith and credin of the
UL Gowernment. Pools crested and guaramieed by mon-goverrmental issuers, induding  government-spontoned
corpantions, may be supponted by various forms of Insuranoe or guarantenss, but there can ba no assurance that private
insurers of guarantors can meet their obligations under the imuance polides of guarantes amangements. Mary of the
fitks of irvesting in mortgage -releted ecurities weoured by commercisl mortgage losrs reflect the effeds of kaeal and
other etoromic conditions on real estate markets, the ability of tenants to make lesse payments, and the ability of a
roperty o attract snd retain tenants.

Crodil Btk

Crecit risk represents the potential koss that the Fund would inour if the courterpanies o issuers of debt securities faded
1y o pursuan o the tenms of their obligations to the Fund. For exthargs fraded contracty, the echarge 8615 ot the
counterparty to spedfic transactions ard, therefore, bears the risk of delivery 1o and from counterparties of specific
positions. The Fund's managemert doet not consider that credit risk related to open derfstie contracts will hinee material
acheerse effect on the firanaal cordition of the Fupd,

Athough the Marager rorfiors the Qustodisn and belieess it o be on spproprste custadion, there is no guaramtes that
thiz or any custodian that the Fund may e from time 1o time, will not become insoheerd, which could lead to keses for
the Fupd,

While both the LS. Backrupicy Code ard the Securiies imvestor Prodection Act of 1970 seek 1o profect ousiomer propen y
in the evert of a failure, irsclvency or licuigation of an irstitution, there is no certainty that, i the event of a failuee of an
institution that has custody of Fund assets, the Fund would ot mour lasses due to its ssiets being ursailatle for @ period
of there, ultimatedy bess than full recovery of its assets, or both, Becuse all of the Fund's cash is in custody with a single
institution, such lodsed could be significer? and could matedally irmpeir the ability of the Fund 1o schieve 4 imesdment
objective, The Fund is subject 1o oredit risk 1o thi extent that this institution may be unable to fulGil its obligations to repay
Bt s crmed.

Liueidity fisk
Ipresbinrs should be aware thet thevalue of Units might Ta8 as well 84 rise, Irestment in the Fund irmabees 8 degree of sk
there tan bens assurance that the Fund’s invedtment obijsctime will be achimed.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

Thir Furd is exposed to daily repurchase of its Units but management belisves that the fund has suffisient resources 1o
ment the peesent and foreseeable needs of its busness operations and, Finecessary, the Bquidity 1o fund repurchases ard

FINAMCIAL RESK PAANAG EMENT |continued)
Liquidity Risk fcontinued)

achiewe a marked position appropriately reflecting a smaller capital base. This position s moniiored ontinually by
maragament (o ensune that the Fund has the absdisy to meet its cbligations,

Carrenty Rick
The Furd holds monetary and non-manctary assets and nours monetary and non-monesary Babilitic: denominated in
ourrencies other than USE, the Furctional Currency. [t i therefore mopoted to currency rink, 2% the wailue of the seets and
Habdlities cenominated in other curmendes {“ron-US0T) will flucuate due to charges In exchange rates. The Fund may
enter into ourrency hedging transactions from time to time in onder (o limit it expossie to oumency risk.

The imvestment manages monitors the Fund’s curre oy exposure on a daily bass.

COPANMTIVENTS AND COMNTRNGE NCIES

In the normal course of business, the Truster on behalf of the Fund may enter inte contracts that contain a waniety of
representations and warranties and which provide general indemnifications, The general indemrifications apply nof only
to the extent such represertations and warrantes are enine but also may cower thid parties such as the Fund's
Adrrimistrator, Auditor or Imeshment Manager for claims refated to the wvices performed for the fund, The Trstes's
makmum espoture Lnder ary such arrangirnents i unkrown, a3 exposure only arises to the extent futune daims that
haves not yet ocourned are made against the Tntee. However, based on experience, the Trustee expects the risk of loss to
b rermade

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management performed a subseguent events review up to June 28, 2019 which is the date the finarcial statements were
availabde tor be issued,

Effective March 1, 20019 through June 26, 2019, there wore subsoriptions of LUSD 194527 in respect of JFY Monthly
Cistribution Class and there were subscriptions of USD 537 946 in respect of 17 Semi-Arnual Gitribution Class, thens were
subacriptions of USD 5,756 in respect of USD Moarthly Distabation Clasy, there were subdoriglions of USD 527,787 in
respect of USD Semi-Annual Cistribution Qass,

Effective March 1, 201% through June 26, 2019, there were redempiions of USD 933,245 in respect of JPY Monthly
Cristribnrtion Class and thire wene redemptions of LSD 449, 246 in respect of 187 Semi-Annual Craribution Oass, there were
recemptions of WD nil in respect of USS Monthily Distribution Class, there were redemptions of USD 2 7848 165 in respect
of LD Semi-Anrual Citribotion Qasy

There were distributions of US0D 33,003 in respect of 15Y Monthly Distribution Qass. There were distributions of USD
151,881 in respect of JFY SemiAnrual Distribution Class. There were distributions of US0 22,419 in respect of USD
Marthly Bistribution (ass. There were distributions of USD 138,853 in respect of USD Serri-dn nual Distribation Clids.

There are no other significart cwents to report 26 they relate to the Fund,
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2018 28
2018 28
94,846,162 92,956,973 10,019,832
2,684,116 289,321
19,742 2,128
5,955 642
257,676 27,775
33,003 3,557
11,005 1,186
95,968,470 10,344,441
96,692 10,422
61,033 6,579
54,370 5,861
51,439 5,545
50,008 5,390
13,803 1,488
8,966 966
3,243 350
33,660 3,628
373,214 40,229
95,595,256 10,304,213
94,856,094 10,224,538
1,032,514 111,295
1,562,670 168,440
(1,856,022) (200,061)
95,595,256 10,304,213
1,319,826,597
135,405 9,747
4,649,612,061
475,189 9,785
8,686,382
879,804 9.87 1,064
30,965,492
3,117,938 9.93 1,070
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2017 30 2018 28

2,683,221 289,224
2,683,221 289,224
482,165 51,973
425,439 45,858
61,033 6,579
54,656 5,891
14,181 1,529
13,803 1,488
9,202 992
5,349 577
149,813 16,148
1,215,641 131,034
1,467,580 158,190
(70,975) (7,650)
1,633,645 176,001
1,562,670 168,440
(1,889,189) (203,636)
33,167 3,575
(1,856,022) (200,061)
(293,352) (31,620)
1,174,228 126,570
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2017 30 2018 28
1,467,580 158,190
1,562,670 168,440
(1,856,022) (200,061)
1,174,228 126,570
(73,580) (7,931)
(186,760) (20,131)
(116,211) (12,526)
(58,515) (6,307)
(435,066) (46,896)
139,992 12,499,675 1,347,340
588,854 52,940,672 5,706,475
1,126,302 11,274,869 1,215,318
3,340,569 33,562,896 3,617,745
4,587 (407,590) (43,934)
113,665 (10,300, 650) (1,110,307)
246,498 (2,479,817) (267,299)
222,631 (2,233,961) (240,799)
94,856,094 10,224,538
95,595,256 10,304,213
95,595,256 10,304,213
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2017 30 2018 28
2017
2012 10 15
2009 a CIMA
2017 30
50
NRSRO
NRSRO
CIBC
UFJ PB

UFJ PB SMBC
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12,499,675 52,940,672 11,274,869 33,562,896 110,278,112
(407,590) (10,300,650)  (2,479,817)  (2,233,961)  (15,422,018)
(73,580) (186,760) (116,211) (58,515) (435,066)
350,424 1,121,191 7,541 (304,928) 1,174,228
2018 28 12,368,929 43,574,453 8,686,382 30,965,492 95,595,256
139,992 588,854 1,126,302 3,340,569 5,195,717
(4,587) (113,665) (246,498) (222,631) (587,381)
2018 28 135,405 475,189 879,804 3,117,938 4,608,336
2018 28 91.35 91.70 9.87 9.93
10,000
10.00
10
2018 28
2018 28
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o
* 0.50
2018 28
33,003 (ON
2018 28
1,630,858 33,003
* 0.50
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2018 28
482,165 2018 28 51,439
0.07 2.5
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0.05
60,000
2018 28 54,656
2018 28 54,370
0.015
15,000 2018
28 13,803 2018 13,803
0.02
2018 28 14,181
2018 28 3,243
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2018 28 425,439
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1970
12
13
2018 20
2018 2018 18 308,931
103,771 205,645 356,564
2018 2018 18 1,807,096
3,439,701 5,041,058
4,371,048
55,436 178,699
87,069 183,831
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

February 28, 2018

{Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
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Aszets:

Irsesteninits in seourities, at value (cost of USD 94,546,162)

Cadh

Rescehvable for Investments sold

Recehvable for subscription procecds

Interest receivalie

Unrealited appreciation on lorwand lomeign currency exchange contracts
Propaid aswes

Teaal assets

Liwhilities:

Aceried distributonrs lses
Arcrued professional fees
Accrued custodian and sub-administrator's fons
Accrugd management fees
Accrued negisbration lees
Accrued Instes fees

Accrued trarsfer agent fees
Arcrued agent company's fers
Accrued athar sXpenses

Total llabilities

Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders

Analysis of Net Assets:

Paid in capital

Accumulated undistributied net imwestment gain

Accumulated net realized gairs on Fvestmients and foreign ourrency trarsactions and fareard
forgign currency exchange contracts

Nt unrealited depnetiation on imvestmants and (oreign curnmency transadtions and fomwand fonegn
arhEncy Exchange comiracts

Net Assets Attributable 1o Unitholders

Net Azset Value per Unit

[P Blanthly Distribution Class IPY 1, 319,826,597 + 135,405 Usits outstanding)

(P Semni-Annual Distibution Class IPY 4,649,612,061 + 475,189 inits suastanding)
[USD Menthly Distribution Class UISD 8,686,382 + 879,804 Unts cutstanding)

[USD Semi-Anrual Distribution Class USD 30,965,492 + 3,117,938 Units putstanding)

UsD 92,956,973
2684116

15,742

5,955

257,676

33,003

15,005

95968470

96,692
61,033
54,300
51,439
50,008
13,203
8966
3243
33,660
373,214

o 9559556

UsD 94,856,094
1032514

1,562,600

1,856,022

- N

1Py 9,747
JFY 9,785
LISD 587
usD 5.53

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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For the period from March 30, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

{Expressed in United States Dollar)

Irvesiment Income:
Interest
Total Investrmaent ngomse

Expenses:
Maragemsent fees
Distribnators fees
Profestional fees
Custodian and sub-adminkstrators fees
Agent company's fees
Trustes lees
Transfer agent fies
Reghtration fees
Dabser gxpenges

Total Experses

Net Investmeent Incomss:

| and Unrealized Galns,f{L 1
Reaized gains/(io5ses)
Invedtrnants in seourities
Fareign currency bransactions and Farward foreign currency exchange cantracts
et realied gains
Crange in unsealined appreciation/[depnesiation)
Investments in securities
Foreign currency Lrandactions and Tarward foreign currency exchange cantracts
et grange in unrealiped depreciation
Net realized and unrealized losses

Net increase in net assets resuliing from operations

The: accomganying nates are an integral part of these financial statements,
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LISD 2683 221
2583221

482,165
425,439
63,033
54656
14,181
13,803
5,302
5,348
145,813
1215641

1,467 %80

[P0.975)
1,633,645
1,562 670

{1,889,189)
33,167
{1.856,022)
(293,352)

usp 1,17
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DOUEBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the period from March 30, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

{Expressed in United States Dollar)

Increaie [Decrense] in Net Assets from:

Operations:
Net investmaent income

usn 14ET 580

Met realized gains 1,562,670
Nt change in unseakted depreciation {1.856,002)
Mied increase in net assets resulting Fram aperations L174.328
Distributions to Unitholders:
1P Mosthly Dstritution Class (73,5800
1Py Semi-Anrual Distribution Class [ 186, T60)
USD Manthly Distribution Clads [116,211)
Us0 SembAnnual Distribution Claas ;5&515&
Toal Distributions [435,066)
Capltal Transactions:
Lievits issuad
I Mesithly Distribution Class (139,992 Units) 12498675
IPY Sermi-Anrual Distribution Class {588,854 Unis) 52,940,672
USD Monthly Distribution Class (1,126,302 Unitsh 11,274,865
USD Semib-Annual Distribution Class (3,340,569 Units) 131,562,896
Uriits redeemed
1P Monthly Distribution Class (4,587 Units) [407,550)
IPY Semi-Anrual Distribution Class {113,665 Units) (10,300,650
USD Moanthly Distribution Clads {246,498 Urnits) {2479.817)
USDr Semi-Annual Distribution Class (222631 Wnitsh {2.233,961)
Net increase in net assets resulting from capital transactions ‘94_B56, M4
Total Increase in Net Assets 095,505,256
Nt Assets:
Baginning of period
erdlof pariod VS0 9539356

The accompanying nates are an integral part of these financial statements,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period from March 30, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

ORGANIZATION

Doubleline Total Return Fund [the “Fund®) ks a serles trust of the Nikko AM Offshore Funds, an open-ended unit trust
established by a supplemental trust deed dated February 8, 2007 (the “Supplernental Trust Deed”™), under the laws of the
Cayman Islands. Nikko AM Offshore Funds was established by a master trust deed dated Octeber 15, 2012 (the “Master
Trust Deed”), under the laws of the Cayman Islands and is licensed with the Cayrman lslands Monetary Authority pursuant
to section 4{1){a) of the Mutual Funds Law (2009 Revision). The Fund commenced operations on March 30, 2017,

The Fund's assets are managed on a day to day basis by Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited {the “Manager”). The Manager
defegates investment management duties to Nikko Asset Management Co., Ltd., [the “Tnvestment Manager), The
Investrment Manager delegates investment management duties to Doubleline Capital LP, [the “Sub-Inwestment Manager”).
The administration of the Fund is delegated 1o Brown Brothers Harriman & Co, (the “Custodian™ and “Sub-Administrator”),
a limited partnership organized under the laws of the State of Mew York,

The investrnent abjective of the Fund s to achieve a mid to long term total return through income and capital appreciation.
Under normal circurmstances, the Series Trust shall imvest over 509% of its net assets in residential and commercial
martgage-backed securities, actively allocated between agency and non-agency securities.

These investments may Include mortigage-backed securities of any maturity or type, including those guarantesd by, or
secured by collateral that is guaranteed by, the United States Government, it agencies, instrumentalities or spomioned
corporations, and privately Issued martgage-backed securities rated at the time of purchase Aa3 or higher by Moody's or
Ab- or higher by S2P or of an equivalent rating by ary other nationally recognized statistical rating erganization [“NRSRO")
that has been recognized by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission or unrated securities that are determined by the
Investrment Manager or its delegates to be of comparable quality. Thede nvestrments alio include, amaong others, LS,
Government mortgage pass-through securities, collateralized mortgage obligations, multiclass pass-through securities,
private mortgage pas-through securities, stripped mortgage securities (interest-only and principal-only securities) and
Irverse floaters.

The Series Trust may also invest in short term investments, such as notes issued by LS. Government agencies, and bonds,
diht securities and ather fixed income instruments issued by LS, Governmental of private-sector entities, or other asset-
backed obligations, collateralized loan obligations, and obligations of the U5, Government and its agencies,
instrumantalities and sponsored corparations,

The Series Trust may invest in bands of amy credit quality, including these that are at the time of investment unrated ar
rated B8+ or lower by S5&F or Bal or lower by Moody's or of an equivalent rating by any other NRSRO. Bonds and fixed
income instrurnents rated below investrent grade, or such instruments that are unrated and determined by the
Inwestrent Manager or its delegates to be of comparable quality, are high yield, high risk bonds, commanly known as ‘Junk
bonds". The Series Trust may invest up ta a thied of it net asets injunk bands, bank leans and assignrments that are either
rated below investment grade or are unrated but determined by the Imvestment Manager or its delegates to be of
comparable quality, and eredit defaule swaps of campanies in the high yield universe,

The Series Trust may invest a portion of its net assets in inverse floater securities and interest-only and principal-only
securities.

Under the terms of the Supplernental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman)
Lirnited {the “Trustee” and the “Administrater”) is named as Trustee of the Fund,

The Manager appointed Mitsubishi UF) Morgan Stanley PB Securities Co., Ltd to act as Agent Company (the “Agent
Compary”) and the Manager appointed Mitsubishi UF] Margan Stanley PB Securities Co., Ltd and SMBC Trust Bank Ltd. 1o
act as Distributors (the "Distributors™] of Units in Japan.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Fund is an Investrent Company that follows the accounting and reporting guidance in FASB Accounting Stamdards
Codification 945,

Use of Estimates

The accompanying financial staterments have been prepared In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United 5tates of America (U5, GAAP"), The preparation of financial statements in accordance with LS, GAAP requines
the Fund’s management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labllities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the period from March 30, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Use af Estimates [continued)
revenues and expenses during the reparting period. Actual results, including the ultimate amournt realized upon the sale of
falr valued investments, could differ from those estimates and such differences may be significant.

Basiz of Accounting

Security and contractual trandactions are recorded on a trade/contract-date basis, Interest income i5 recarded on an
effective yield basis, net of any applicable withholding tax. Interest expense and other expenses are recorded on an accreal
basis, Realized gains and losses from security transactions are computed on the basis of the average cost of the securities
sold or covered. Changes in the valuation of investments are recorded in the Statement of Operations as unrealized
appreciation or depreciation.

Valwation of Investments

Bonds and other debt securities, including restricted securities [other than shori-term obligations but including listed
issues) are fair valued at their last sale price in the principal market in which such securities are normally traded, on the
basis of waluations furnished by a pricing service, use of which has been approved by the Investment Manager, or if no sale
has occurred, the bid price on the valuation date as provided by brokers who are market makers in the securities, All debt
securities with less than 12 maonths to maturity date, in principle shall be fair valued using an amortized cost effected by an
effective yield accumulated/amortization method to their maturity date with adjustments based on comparison with
market prices as required.

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on falr value measurements and dischasures under LS. GAAP, the Fund
dischoses the fair value of its investments in a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
the fair walue. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to valuations based upon unadjusted guoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 meassrement) and the lowest priority to valuations based upen unobservable
Inputs that are significant to the valuation [Level 3 measurements). The guldance establishes three levels of the fair value
hierarchy as follows:

#  Lewel 1 = Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in acthve markets for identical investments that the Fund
has the ability to access at the measurement date;

#« Lewel 2 = Inputs other than quoted prices that are significant and observable for the asset or liability either
directly o indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considened to be active;

#  Lewel 3 = Inputs that are significant and unobservable.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation technigues and broadly refer to the assumptions that market participants
s to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk, Inputs may include price infarmation, specific and broad
credit data, liquidity statistics, and other factors. A financial instrument's level within the fakr value hierarchy is based upon
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair valee measurement, However, the determination of what
constitutes “observable” requires significant judgment by the Investment Manager. The Investrnent Manager considers
observable data to be market data which is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not
proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market. The categorization of a
financial instrument within the hierarchy i based upon the pricing transparency of the instrument and does nat necessarily
correspond to the Investment Manager's percefved risk of that instrument.

Investments whose values are based on the guoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within Level 1,
would include actively traded equities, certain LS government and soversign obligations, and certain money market
securities, and certain asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligatiens. The Investment Manager would not
adjust the quoted price for such instruments, ewven in situations where the Fund held a large position and a sale could
reasonably impact the quoted price.

Investrents that trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued based on guated market prices,
dealer quatations or alternative pricing sources supparted by observable inputs are classified within Lovel 2, These incheds
imestment-grade debt securities, short-term investments and forward foreign currency exchange contracts and may also
include certain asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations, As Level 2 investments include positions
that are not traded in active markets andfor are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect
illsquidity andfor non-transferability, which are generally based on available market information,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the period from March 30, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

Valwation of Investments fcontinuved)

Investrents clasaified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they would trade infrequently, Level 3
instrurments would include certain asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations. As obsenable prices are
nat available for those securities, the Fund would use valuation techniques to derive the fair value.

The Inputs or methodology used for valulng securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk assoclated with Investing
in those securities,

The following table presents the financial instruments carried on the 5tatement of Assets and Liabilities by caption and by
lewel within the valuation hierarchy as of February 28, 2008, Further classifications of the financial instruments are
presented in the Portfolio of Investments, There were no movements between levels during the period.

Assets at Fair Value Fair Value at
Lovel 1 Leved 2 Lewel 3 February 18, 2018
Fioed Income Seourities uso (1% 429564973 LD usD 52955973
Forward Foreign Curnency
Excharge Contracts 33.003 33.003
Tetal Lsn - usn 92,989,976 Usn - S0 9298976
Liabilities at Fair Value Fair Valus at
Liswred 1 Lizngd 2 Ll 3 Februany I8, 2008
Forward Foreign Currency
Exchange Contracts uso UsD [y LED uso oy
Total Uso —__us o uso —__uso o

" & zero balance represents rouncing bo less than U500 50,

Farelgn Currency Translation

Assets and labilties held in currencies other than United States Dollar ("USD" or the “Functional Currency™) are translated
to the Functional Currency at the rate of exchange prevailing at the financial statement date. Income and expenses are
tramslated at the rate of exchange prevailing ot the date on which the income or expense is incurred. Realized and
unrealized galns and losses arising on forelgn currency transactions are included in the Staternent of Operations In the
period in which they accur.

The Fund does pot isolate that portion of the results of eperations resulting from changes in foreign exchange rates on
Imvestments from the fluctuations arising frem changes In market prices of securities held. Such fluctuations are included
with the et realized and unrealized gain or bess fram imestments,

Income Tawes

Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there are no incomes, withhalding. capital gains or other taxes payable by
the Fund. In certain jurisdictions ather than the Cayman |slands, foreign taxes may be withheld at source on dividends and
interest received by the Fund. Capital gains derived by the Fund in such jurisdictions generally will be exempt from foreign
income of withholding taxes at source, The Fund intends to conduet its affairs such that it will not be subject to income tax
In any jurisdiction, As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made in the finandal statements. Unitholders may
be taxed on their proportionate share of the Fund's tax basis income based on their individual cireumstances.

The Fund fallaws the authoritative guidance on aceounting for and disclesure of uncertainty in tax positions (Financial
Accounting Standards Board [“FASE") - Accounting Standards Codification 740), which requires the Manager to determine
whether a tax position of the Fund is mare likely than nat to be sustained upan examination by the applicable taxing
authority, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the bechnical merits of the position,
For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax benefit recognized in the financial statements is
reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement
with the relevant taxing authority. The Manager has determined that there is minimal or no effect on the financial
staterments being under this authoritative guidance,

Forward Faveign Currency Exchonge Controcts

The Fund may enter into forward foreign currency exchange contracts to hedge against foreign currency exchange rate
risks on all or a portion of non-USD demoménated investments or for efficient portfolic management purposes. When
entering into a forward foreign currency exchange contract, the Fund agrees to receive or deliver a fived quantity of
forelgn currency for an agreed-upon price on an agreed future date. These contracts are valued daily, and the Fund’s net
equity therein, representing unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) on the contracts as measured by the difference
between the ferward foreign currency exchange rates at the dates of entry into the contracts and the forward rates at the
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the period from March 30, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Farward Forelgn Currency Exchonge Contracts fcontinued)
reporting date, i included in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are included
in the Statement of Operations.

These instruments Irvolee market risk, credit risk, or both kinds of rsks, in excess of the amount recognized in the
Statement of Assets and Liabilities, Risks arise from the possible inability of counterpartios to meet the terms of their
contracts and fram movement in currency and securities values and interest rates. In addition to the Class level hedging,
the Fund had realized gain of USD 1,939 on 15 forward foreign currency exchange contracts during the period with an
average notional of USD 151,346 and an average term to maturity of 10 days. The Fund had net realized gain of USD
412,090 on 36 forward fareign curréncy exchange contracts held at the JFY Maonthly Distributian Class Hedged level during
the period with an average notional of USD 6,185,201 and an average term to maturity of 25 days. The Fund also had
realized gain of USD 1,216,829 on 41 forward foreign currency exchange contracts held at the JMY Semi-Annual Distribution
Class Hedged level during the period with an average notional of USD 25,180,747 and an average term to maturity of 27
days.

Cosh ond Foreign Currency
Cash and foreign currency comprises all currency held with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., and avernight and ather short
term placemants with ather financial institutions,

UINITS

The net assets of the Fund are divided into JPY Monthly Distribution Class Units, JFY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units,
UsD Monthly Distribution Class Units and USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units. The Units are denomanated in United
States Dollar and Japanese Yen. JPY Monthly Distribution Class Units, JFY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units, USD
Monthly Distribution Class Units and USD Semi-annual Distribution Class Units are available to an eligible investor who is
any person, corparation or entity which is not (i) a citizen or resident of the U.5., a partnership organized or existing in the
W5, or any corporation, trust or other entity organized under the laws of or existing in the US; (i) person or entity resident
or domiciled in the Cayman klands (excluding any object of a charitable trust or power or an exempted or non-resident
Cayman Islands companyl; [iil) wnable to subscribe for or hald Units without violating applicable laws, or (i) a custodian,
nomines, or trustee for any person, corporation or entity descrited in {i] to (i) abowe.

The Manager may determine to issue one or mere classes of Units of the Fund without prior notice to or written consent of
the Unithalders,

Al of the net assets attributable to JPY Monthly Distribution Class Units, IPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units Class,
LISD Manthly Distribution Class Units and LISD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units, are held by two Unitholder.

IFY Moanthly JPY Semi-fnnual  USD Maonthly  USD Seri-Annual
Distribution Class  Distribution Class  Distribution Class  Distribution Class Tatal Funid

Balance at beginning of period usn wsp uso UsD uso
Subscriplions Guring the period 12,499,675 32,040,672 11,274,869 33,562,896 110,278,112
Risdie mplions. during thi period (A0T. 5%0) {10,300,650) [2,4T9.R17) {2.233,961) (15,422,018)
Distribwstions {73,580) (186, 160y {1186,211) (58515) {435, 066)
Net increasef[decrease) In net assels

resulting from cperations 350,424 1,121,191 7,541 [304.528) L174.228
Net Assets ot February 28, 2018 LSO 12368939 USD 43574453 USD  EGRGIR? WSD 30965492 LSO 55,565,256

Numser of Units In issuee ak
beginning of period

Limits issusd during the pesiod 139,592 588,851 1,126,302 3,340,569 5,195,717
Unils redesmed during the pericd 14,587) {113, BES} (246,408 {22 631) 587,381}
Number af Units in iLsue a8 Febroary 28,

2018 135,405 AT5 189 75,804 3,117,938 4,608,336
Niet Asset Value par LUinit at February 28,
2008 Uso G135 UsD 51,70 UsD 887 UsD 953
Subscriptions for Units

JFY Monthly Distribution Class Units and IFY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units were first Issued at an initlal lssue price
of I 10,000 per Unit. The minimum initial subscription for JPY Monthly Distribution Class Units and JPY Semi-Anmsal
Distribution Class Units per subscriber ks 1 Unit or more, and in multiples of 1 Units thereafter.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the period from March 30, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

WUNITS [continued)

Subscriptions for Unlt (continued)

USD Manthly Distribution Class Units and USD Sermi-Annual Distribution Class Units were first isswsed at an initial issue price
of USD 10.00 per Unit. The ménimurn initial subscription for USD Manthly Distributbon Class Units and USD Semi-Annual
Distribution Class Units per subscriber is. 10 Units or mare, and in multiples of 1 Unit thereafter.

Tha Banager may waive or change the minimum initial and additional subscription amounts set forth above in its sole
discretion frorm time to time.

Unit Redemptions

The Fund recognizes redemptions in accordance with the authoritative guidance on distinguishing liabilities from equity,
Redemptions, whether expressed as United States Dollar, Japanese Yen or Units, are recognized as labilities when each of
the lapanese Yen and United States Dedlar Unit amowunts requested in the redemption notice becomes fixed, which
generally may accur either at the time of the receipt of the notice, or on the last day of a fiscal year, depending on the
mature of the request, As a result, redemptions paid after the end of the period, but based upan year end net assets ane
reflected as redemptions payable at February 28, 2018. There were USD nil and MFY nil of redemptions payable as at
February 28, 2018 included as Payable for Units redeemed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities,

Repurchose of Units
Units may be repurchased at the option of Unitholders on each Repurchase Day.

Unitholders wishing te have Units repurchased must send a completed Repurchase Notice to the Distributors so as to be
received by the Distributors no later than 3:00 p.m. [Tokyo time) on the relevant Repurchase Day, The Distributors will
send the completed Repurchase Motices to the Sub-Administrator by no later than 6:00 p.m. (Tokyo time] on the relevant
Repurchase Day or by such other time as the Sub-Administrator may in any particular case determine.

If the relevant Repurchase Notice i not received by the Sub-Administrator by the relevant timse, the Repurchase Notice will
be held over until the nest following Repurchase Day after the Repurchase Notice is received and Units will then be
redeermied at the relevant repurchase price applicable on that Repurchase Day,

A Repurchase Notice, once given, is irrevocable,

Compulsory Redemption

In the event that the Trustee or the Manager shall determine that any Units of any class of a Series Trust are being held by
or for the benefit of a person who ks not an Eligible Investor for such Serles Trust or that such holding would cause the
Trust or the Series Trust to be required to register, be subject to tax or violate the laws of any jurisdiction, or if the Trustee
or the Manager has reasan to doubt the legitirmacy of the source of monles used to fund the subscription or purchase of
such Units, or for whatewer reason (which may not be disclosed by the Trustee or the Manager to Unitholders) that the
Trustee or the Manager considers appropeiate at its absolute discretion having regard to the interests of the Unithalders of
the relevant Class or the Unitholders of the Series Trust as a whaole, then the Manager, after consultation with the Trustee,
may direct the holder thereof to sell (subject to the provisions described below in the section headed "Transfer of Units®)
such Units within 10 days and provide to the Trustee and the Manager evidence of such sale, failing which the Manager
may redeem such Units.

Termination af the Fund
Upon termination, the Manager will realize all the assets of the Fund, and after paying out or retaining adequate provision
for all Babilities properly payable and retaining provision for the costs of the termination, the Trustee shall distribute the
procesds af that realization to the Unithalders proportionately to their respective interests in the Fund as of the date of
termination of the Fund,

Distributions to Unitholders

The Blanager may, from time to time, in its sole discretion, declare distributions from September 2007, Distribution will be
declared on each Distribution Record Date and calculated on each Ex-Distribution Date, Distribution Period is a period
commending from the calendar day 'thil‘lﬂ the preceding Distribution Record Date and ending on and including the
Distribution Record Date. The distributions will be paid on the relevant Distribution Payment Date, provided that such
amourit [if any) declared with respect to the relevant Class of Units in respect of the applicable Distribution Period shall
only be paid out of the Series Trust's net income, realized and wnrealized capital gains and any distributable funds of the
Series Trust attributable vo such Class of Units a8 determined by the Manages,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the period from March 30, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

WUNITS [continued)

Distributions to Unitholders {continued)

The declaration of distributions to Unitholders reduces the Class Level Net Asset Value per Unit without any corresponding
change in the number of Class Level Units per Unitholder, This results in a Unithalder's overall investment in the Fund
being reduced. In addition, any distributions during a period which are in exeess of the Fund's net increase in net assets
resulting from operations results in a portion of the distribution being return of capital,

The armaunt of distributions, if any, will be determined by the Manager in its role discretion, and no representation or
guarantee is made that a distribution will be made in respect of each or ary Distribution Period.

Copitaliration

The Net Asset Value per Unit is caleulated for each Dealing Day ( each Valuation Day, or such ather day or days as the
Manager may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust], by dividing the difference in value between the
Fund's assets and liabilities (including acerued fees and expenses of the Fund) by the number of Units outstanding.

The Trust Deed stipulates that the number of Units 1o be issued in the Fund shall be unlimited as the Manager shall
determine and shall be without par value.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Aceounting Standard Codification (ASC) §15-10-50 requires disclosures about derivative instruments and hedging activities,
It requires that the Fund disclose: a] how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, b} how derivative instruments and
related hedged items are accounted for and c) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entitys
financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

The Fund transacts forward derivative instruments primarily for hedging purposes with each instrument’s primary risk
expasure being foreign exchange risk. The forward foreign currency exchange contracts held by the Fund do nat qualify as
hedges for accounting purposes under the requirements of ASC B15. The fair value of these derivative instruments is
included in the Statement of Assets and Liabilties with changes in fair value reflected a4 realized gainaf{losses) or net
change in unrealized appreciation/[depreciation] on derivatives within the Statement of Operations (Note 2).

The Fund may enter into an International Swaps and Derivative Association, Inc. Master Agreement {150A Master
Agresment”) with its counterparties in order to mitigate counterparty risk. The [SDA Master Agreement is typically
negotiated by the Fund and its counterparties, containing the bi-lateral terms and conditions for all subsequent derivative
transactions. The ISD4 Master Agreement allows for the netting of all amounts ewed to or due from oounterparty into a
single net payment if a credit event or default should occur,

At February 28, 2018 the Fund had entered into the following derivative assets by counter party net of amounts available
for offset under a Master Netting Agreement (*MMNA™) and net of any collateral received by the Fund:

Derhative Assets Darivatives Mon-cash Cash Met Amount of
Cournterparty Subject 100 MMA  Avpilable for Odfsel Collaters] Received Collatersl Redeived Derivative Assets’
Cinibanic WA usn 33,003 LSD LIS LISD LIS 13.003
Total Uso 33,003 S0 - UsD ~UsD ] 13,003

At February 28, 2018 the Fund had entered into the following derivative liabilities by counterparty net of amounts available
for affset under a MNA and net of any collateral pledged by the Fund:

Derivative Derivatives Ron-cash Cash Met Amount of
Counterparty Uabilities Awailable for Offset Collateral Pledged  Collateral Pledged Derivative
Subiject ta o MNA Lisbiligies "
Beowen Brotners Hasriman & Co,  USD {0)* UsD Lso LsD Lso {0*
Total usD: [0)° UsD [ Usn uso i6*

b Bt deraunt igedls e st amcaet pirorhv b fpayabibe fram ke dounterparty in She et of deliult
" A pera halsnos represEnss Founding (o ks than LISD 050,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the period from March 30, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [continued)

At February 28, 2018 the Fund had entered into the following derivatives:

Asset Derivatives Lial Darivatives
Derivatives Statemnent Statement
Nat Accounted for as al Assets and of Assets and

Hedging Instruments Liakilities Lacation Fais Value
Forward foreign currency  Unrealited appreciation

Liabifities Location Fair Valug
Wnrealized depreciation

exchange contracts on larwand lareign on farwand lareign
{Currerty Risk]) currency exchange ush 33003 currency exchange usn {o*
contracls cardracts

The effect of derivative instruments on the Statement of Operations for the period ended February 28, 2018:

Change in Ursealized
Lecation of Realized Apprecation or
Deriratives Mot Actosinted Galn or [Loss) Gain or [Loss) |Depreciation) on
for as Hedging Instruments on Derivatives on Derivatives Derivatives
Het realized gain on looward loneign
Forward Fareign currency currency exchange comlracts;
exchange contracts change im unrealized appreciation
[Currary Risk] {Bepraciation) on forward foeeign curnency  USD LE3DASE  USD 33,003
exchange cantracts

" A, pinre halins represn 5 rouneing to less than USD0,50,

MWAMAGEMENT FEES

The Manager is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a management fee of a total up to (LEB% per annum
[0.03% per annum in respect of fee for the Manager, 0.25% per annum of the Net Asset Value up te USD 400 million and
0.22% por annum of the Net Asset Value over USD 400 million in respect of fee for the Investment Manager, and 0.40% per
annurm of the Met Asset Value up te USD 400 million and 0.35% per annwm of the Met Asset Value over USD 400 million in
respect of fee for the Sub-Investment Manager) of the Net Asset Value accrued on, and calculated as at, each Valuation
Day and payable rmonthly in arrears. In addition, the Manager is also entitled to be reimbursed out of the assets of the
Series Trust for any expenses incurred by it in the proper performance of its powers and duties as permitted under the
Master Trust Deed. During the period ended February 28, 2018, the Manager earned fees of WSD 482,165, of which USD
51,439 is still gutstanding as of February 28, 2018,

The Manager will pay the fees of the Investment Manager out of its fees, The Investment Manager will be responsible for
paying the fees of the Sub-lnvestrient Manager and any of the Investment Manager's delegates or other parties appointed
by the Investrment Manager to perform its functions in respect of the Series Trust.

CUSTODIAN AND SUB-ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

The Fund has a custody and accounting agreement with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (the “Custodian” and “Sub-
Adrninistrator®) for which the Custodian receives a fee caleulated and paid monthly based on total assets and transaction
valume,

The Custodian and Sub-Administrator is entitled to receivee out of the asets of the Series Trust an administration fee
[Including transfer agent fee) calculated based on the Met Asset Walue as at each Valuation Day at the following annual
rate:

- 0.07% up to [and including) USD 250 million;

= 0,06% up to [and including) LSD 500 million;

- 0.05% avier LSO 500 million.

Such adrinistration fee is payable rmonthly in arrears, and subject to the minimum anmeal fee of USD 60,000 In addition,
the Custodian and Sub-Administrator is also entitled to receive customary safekeeping fees and tramsaction charges, all
out-of-pecket expenses of the Custodian and Sub-Administrator shall also be borne by the Serles Trust. During the period
ended February 28, 2018, the Custodian earned fees of LSD 54,656, of which USD 54,370 is stilll outstanding as of February
28, 2018,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the period from March 30, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

TRUSTEE FEES

The Trustee is entitled to recelve out of the assets of the Sarles Trust a combined fee at the rate of 0L015% per annum of
the Mt Asset Value acerued on, and calculsted as ar each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears, subject to a
minimum annual fee of USD 15,000, During the pericd ended February 28, 2018, the Trustee earned fees of USD 13,803, of
which USD 13,803 & still outstanding as of February 28, 2018,

AGENT COMPANY'S FEES

Thar Agent Company is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0L0Z% per annum of the
Net Asset Value accrued on, and calculated as at, each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. During the period
ended February 28, 2018, the Agent earned fees of USD 14,181, of which USD 3,243 is still outstanding as of Febwuary 28,
2018,

DISTRIBUTION FEES

The Distributors are entitled to receive out of the assets of the Serbes Trust a fee at the rate of 0.60% per annurm of the Net
Asset Value accrued on, and cakoulated as at each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears, During the period ended
February 258, 2018, the Distributors earned fees of WSD 425,439, of which USD 96,692 Is still outstanding as of February 28,
2018,

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES

The costs and expenses in connection with the establishment of the Series Trust and the offering of the Units, together
with the establishment of the Trust, including the costs and expenses of preparing and printing any prospectus or
explanatory brochures required, were estimated at launch to amount to approsimately USD 140,000, Such costs and
expenses will be amortised within the first five {5) financial years of the Seres Trust unless the Trustee decldes that some
ather mathod shall be applied. The Administrator receives USD 1,500 per annum for FATCA f CRS compliance services,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk [including price risk, interest rate risk, and currency
risk], eredit risk and liquidity risk.

Market Risk

Al investments present a risk of loss of capital, The Investment Manager moderates this risk through a careful selection of
securities and other financial instruments.

The Fund's investment management process is described in Note 1. The primary determinant of the Fund's ability to meet
its objective of mid to long term capital appreciation while earning income is dependent on the performance of the
imsestment in the residential and commencial morgage-backed securities.

The values of the Fund's investments are affected by 2 number of factars, including but not limited 1o, changes in the wider
economy, financial and currency markets, foreign currency exchange rates, interest rate movements and credit ratings of
debt issuers. The Fund enters into forward contracts which to varying degrees represent a market risk in excess of the
amount reflected on the Fund's Statement of Assets and Liabidities. The notional amount of the contract represents the
extent of the Fund's participation in these financial instrurnents. Market risks associated with such conftracts arise due to
the: possible movements in foreign currency exchange rates underlying these instruments.

Other market and credit risks include the possibility that there may be an illiquid market for the contracts, that the change
in the value of the contract may not directly correlate with changes in the valee of the underlying currencies or that the
counterparty to a forward contract defaults on its obligation to perform under the terms of the contract. The Fund's
exposure bo loss due to counterparty non-perfermance on open futures, forwards, swap and options contracts s limited to
the unrealized appreciation inherent in such financial instruments which are recognized in the Statement of Assets and
Liabalities.

Asset-backed securities investment risk

Asset-backed securities investment have the risk that borrowers may default on the obligations that underlie the asset-
backed security and that, during periods of falling interest rates, aviet-backed securities may be called or prepaid, which
may result in the Series Trust having to reinvest proceeds in other imvestments at a lower interest rate, and the risk that
the impairmaent of the value of the collateral underlying a security in which the Series Trust invests (due, for example, to
non-payment of loans) will result in a reduction in the value of the secwrity.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the period from March 30, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [continued])

Concentration risk

The Series Trust imvests substantially in bonds isswed by US. agencies in sccordance with its principal investment
strategies. Because such securities are bsued by a limited number of government agencies, any actual or potential
disruption to those agencies could present a risk to the Sedes Trust, Fannie Mae and Freddie Bac, which are ather
government-sponsored Issuers of mortgage-back securities similar to those guaranteed by Ginnle Mae, suffered such a
disruption in the mortgage crisis of 2007 - 2008 and were plaged under federal conservatarship at that time, Ginnig Mag
securities, unlike those of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, are backed by the full faith and credit of the UL, government and
are subject 1o the risks of ULS, government securities. Similar to other issuers, changes to the finandial condition or credit
rating of the U.S. government may cause the value of the Series Trust's exposure to U5, agencies securities to decline,

Mortgoege-backed securitles risk

Mortgage-backed securities represent intenests in “poels™ of mortgages and are subject to credit, interest rate,
prepayment and extension risk. Mortgage-backed securities react differently to changes in interest rates than other bonds
and the prices of mortgage-backed securities may reflect adverse ecanamic and market conditions, Small movernents in
Interest rates (both increases and decreases) may guickly and significantly reduce the value of certain mortgage-backed
securitics. Default or bankruptey of a counterparty to a to-be-announced transaction would expose the Series Trust to
possible loss.

Martgege-related and Other Asset-Backed Securities risk

Certain Funds may invest in mortgage-related and other asset-backed securities that directly or indirectly represent a
participation n, or are secured by and payable from, loans an real property. Mortgage-related securitles are created from
pools of residential or commercial morgage loans, including mortgage loans made by savings and loan institutions,
martgage bankers, commercial banks and others. These securities provide a monthly payment which consists of bath
interest and principal. Interest may be determined by fived or adjustable rates, The rate of prepayments on underbying
martgages will affect the price and volatility of a mortgage-related security, and may have the effect of shortening or
extending the effective duration of the security relative to what was anticipated at the time of purchase, The timely
payment of principal and interest of certain mortgage-related securities ks guaranteed with the full faith and credit of the
1.5, Gowvernment, Pools created and guarantesd by non-governmental isswers, including government-sponsoned
corporations, may be supported by various forms of Insurance or guarantees, but there can be no assurance that private
insurers or guarantors can meet their obligations under the insurance policies or guarantes arrangarments, Many of the
risks of investing in mortgage-related securities secured by commercial mortgage loans reflect the effects of local and
ather economic conditions on real estate markets, the ability of tenants to make lease payrments, and the ability of a
property to attract and retaln tenants.

Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the potential loss that the Fund would incur if the counterparties or issweers of debt securities failed
to perform pursuant to the terms of their obligations to the Fund. For exchange-traded contracts, the exchange acts as the
counterparty to specific transactions and, therefore, bears the risk of delivery to and from counterparties of specific
positions. The Fund's management does not consider that credit risk related to open derivative contracts will have material
adverse effect on the financial condition of the Fund.

Although the Manager monitors the Custodian and believes it to be an appropriate custodian, there & no guarantee that
this ar any custodian that the Fund may use from time to time, will not become insohvent, which could lead to losses for
the Fund,

‘Whil bath the LS, Bankruptcy Code and the Securities Investor Protection Act of 1970 seek to protect customer property
In the event of a failure, insolvency or liguidation of an Institution, there ks no certainty that, in the event of a fallure of an
institution that has custody of Fund assets, the Fund would not incur kesses due to its assets being unavailable for a period
of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both, Because all of the Fund's eash is in custody with a single
institution, such lesses could be significant and could materially impair the ability of the Fund to achieve its investment
objective. The Fund i subject to credit risk to the extent that this institution may be unable to fulfill its obligations te repay
amounts owed,

Liquidity Risk
Inwestors should be aware that the value of Units might fall as well as rise. Investrnent in the Fund involves a degree of risk;
thieri can be ne assurance that the Fund™s investment abjective will be achisved.

The Fund is exposed to daily repurchase of its Units but management beliewes that the Fund has sufficient resounces to
meet the present and foresesable needs of its business operations and, if necessary, the llquidity to fund repurchases and
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the period from March 30, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [continued)
Liquidity Risk {continued)

achbeve a market position appropriately reflecting a smaller capital base. This position & monitored continually by
management to ensure that the Fond has the ability 1o meet its obligations.

Rizk
The Fund holds monetary and non-monetary assets and incurs monetary and non-monetary liabilities dengminated in
currencies other than USD, the Functional Currency, It is therefore exposed to currency risk, as the value of the assets and
liakilities denoménated in other currencies {*non-US0") will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates. The Fund may
enter into currency hedging transactions from time to time in order to limit its exposure to currency risk.
The investrnent manager monitors the Fund™s currency exposure on a daily basis,

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGEMCIES

In the normal course of business, the Trustee on behalf of the Fund may enter into contracts that contain a varlety of
representations and warranties and which provide general indemnifications. The general indemnifications apply not only
to the extent such represertations and warranties are untree but also may cover thied parties such as the Fund's
Adrministrator, Auditor or Investment Manager for claims related 1o the services perfarmed for the Fund, The Trustes's
maximum exposure under any such arrangements Is unknown, as exposure anly arises to the extent future claims that
hawi ot yet accurred are madie againat the Trustes, However, based on expiriencs, the Trustes expects the ritk af lass to
be remote.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Managernent performed a subsequent events review up to July 20, 2018 which is the date the financlal statements were
available to be issued,

Effective March 1, 2018 through July 1B, 2018, there were subscriptions of USD 308,931 in respect of IPY Monthly
Distribution Class and there were subscriptions of USD 103,771 In respect of 1#Y Semi-Annual Distribution Class, there were
subscriptions of USD 205,545 in respect of USD Monthly Ditribution Class, there were subseriptions of USD 356,564 in
respect of USD Semi-annual Distribution Class.

Effective March 1, 2018 through July 18, 2018, there were redemptions of USD 1,807,096 in respect of IPY Monthly
Distribution Class and there wene redemptions of USD 3,438,701 in respect of JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class, there
were redemptions of USD 5,041,058 in respect of USD Monthly Distribution Class, there were redemptions of USD
4,371,048 in respect of USD Sermi-Annual Distribution Class.

There were distributions of USD 55,436 in respect of JPY Manthly Distribution Class. There were distributions of USD
178,699 In respect of JFY Seml-Annual Distribution Class. There were distributions of USD 87,068 in respect of USD
Muonthly Distribution Class. There were distributions of USD 183,831 in respect af USD Sermi-Annual Distribution Class.

Tharre e no other :.igniiiun: events to report as they relate to the Fund.
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73,070,579.95 7,876,277,813
1,052,555.96 113,455,007
72,018,023.99 7,762,822,806
280,595
2,124,913
92,057
426,771
10.11 1,090
10.32 1,112

9,723

9,831

127/192



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
MA02109-3661 40
40 Water Street Boston, MA02109-3661 U.S.A.

10
10

15

21

50

@ ®)
©

128/192



o
2019
480,000
1,000,000 779
2003 26

@

2018

480,000

30,000

129/192

5,174

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

107.79
107.79 1,000,000

2007 30 450,000



2019
5,747

26

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

5,332

2019

11

14

268,270,936,327
988,350
2,841,482,611

90

130/192



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

131

2019 28
UFJ 107.79

131/192



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 31
2019 2018
3,938,928 424,577 2,282,080 245,985
3,190,108 343,862 4,264,282 459,647
71,250 7,680 71,250 7,680
7,200,286 776,119 6,617,612 713,312
7,200,286 776,119 6,617,612 713,312
146,480 15,789 185,000 19,941
124,271 13,395 107,593 11,597
2,462,391 265,421 3,623,292 390,555
2,733,142 294,605 3,915,885 422,093
480,000 2019 31
2018 31
480,000 480,000 51,739 480,000 51,739
3,987,144 429,774 2,221,727 239,480
4,467,144 481,513 2,701,727 291,219
7,200,286 776,119 6,617,612 713,312
17 2019
129332
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2019 31
2019 2018
3,938,928 424,577 2,282,080 245,985
3,190,108 343,862 4,264,282 459,647
71,250 7,680 71,250 7,680
7,200,286 776,119 6,617,612 713,312
1 0.108 1 0.108
1 0.108 1 0.108
7,200,287 776,119 6,617,613 713,313
146,480 15,789 185,000 19,941
124,271 13,395 107,593 11,597
2,462,391 265,421 3,623,292 390,555
2,733,142 294,605 3,915,885 422,093
480,000 2019 31
2018 31
480,000 480,000 51,739 480,000 51,739
3,987,145 429,774 2,221,728 239,480
4,467,145 481,514 2,701,728 291,219
7,200,287 776,119 6,617,613 713,313
17 2019
129332
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2019 31
2019 2018
22,335,065 2,407,497 28,757,335 3,099,753
22,335,065 2,407,497 28,757,335 3,099,753
(1,276,979) (137,646) (1,383,168) (149,092)

(19,056,557)  (2,054,106) (25,366,385)  (2,734,243)
(20,971) (2,260) (18,121) (1,953)
(161,343) (17,391) (247,668) (26,696)
(20,515,850)  (2,211,403) (27,015,342)  (2,911,984)

1,819,215 196,093 1,741,993 187,769
(53,798) (5,799) 63,803 6,877
(53,798) (5,799) 63,803 6,877

1,765,417 190,294 1,805,796 194,647

1,765,417 190,294 1,805,796 194,647

1,765,417 190,294 1,805,796 194,647
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2019 31
¢ > > ¢ > Cc H D> D
480,000 51,739 1,415,931 152,623 1,895,931 204,362
1,805,796 194,647 1,805,796 194,647
(1,000,000) (107,790)  (1,000,000) (107,790)
480,000 51,739 2,221,727 239,480 2,701,727 291,219
1,765,417 190,294 1,765,417 190,294
480,000 51,739 3,987,144 429,774 4,467,144 481,513
2019 31
2019 2018
1,819,215 196,003 1,741,993 187,769
(53,798) (5,799) 63,803 6,877
1,765,417 190,294 1,805,796 194,647
1,074,174 115,785 (2,374,066) (255,901)
(1,182,743) (127,488) 2,208,357 238,039
1,656,848 178,592 1,640,087 176,785
(1,000, 000) (107,790)
(1,000,000) (107,790)
1,656,848 178,592 640,087 68,995
2,282,080 245,985 1,641,993 176,990
3,938,928 424,577 2,282,080 245,985
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309GT
EU
IFRS IFRS IFRIC
2019 31 IFRS
1ASB IFRIC EU
IFRS 1ASB
IFRIC
IFRS 16 2019
1ASB IFRS
2019 31 2018 31
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JPY GBP SGD
2019 31
2018 31 10
2019 2018
JPY 54,000 227,000
GBP 95,000 46,000
SGD 56,000 149,000
2019 31 2019
3,938,928 3,938,928
3,190,108 3,190,108
71,250 71,250
146,480 146,480
124,271 124,271
2,462,391 2,462,391
2018 31 2018
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2,282,080 2,282,080

4,264,282 4,264,282

71,250 71,250

185,000 185,000

107,593 107,593

3,623,292 3,623,292

2019 31 2019 31
2019 31 a
@ ®) ®)

) C C C
4,735,296 339,775
9,478,941 1,253,147
2,634,320 307,671
2,071,148 549,065
136,852 12,733
19,056,557 2,462,391

2018 31 2018 31
2018 31 a
@ ®) ®)

) C C C
8,480,224 2,231,327
10,465,491 792,235
3,643,329 223,129
2,605,050 204,310
172,291 172,291
25,366,385 3,623,292

(a
(b
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The arrietad nobes from 1 bo & form an mdegral part of thess Aranaal staterments

MIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASAT 31 MARCH 20019

Asses

Currend Assets

Cash and cath equivalends

Avcounts pecer aliba

Avccried moome and prepald eeperee
Total Current Asiety

Total Nun- Current Assels

Total Assets

Linbilities and Equity

Currei Lishiliies
Acoued expenses and deferred Income
Acooants payatle
Ammoants payable bo group wderbalongs
Totall Current Liabilities

Ecquity

Capital and Beserves Aitributable i Equity
Hndders of the Compsey

Ehare capital (51 per wadue, 450,000 dhares
suthorized, 80,000 chares izsued snd
dutstandmp at 31 March 2009 and 201 8)
Flared sarnings

Total Equity

Tial LEabilitss and Egquiry
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m9 L
R 2250080
3,190,108 2264252
71,250 71,250
7,200,286 6,617,612
70386 8 6617612
146450 195,000
124N 107393
2462391 1823292
3,758 142 39158EE
£30,000 450,000
3,507, 144 22T
44671 2,901,729
TH028 8 6617612

The firancal saberments on pages 8 bo 1T ware approved bir srtten resolidion of the Board of Directars on 2 August 2019 and
athonsed for 1zwe and signed on its behalf by

Cormparry regrtaned oumb-or 125332
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MIKEQ AM CGLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
COMPARY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSTTION
ASAT 21 MARCH 2012

Nale 2009 2018
Asies
Curremt Assets
Carh and cash equvalents H e o 28 80
Acomrks recarable 3150108 4,164 2852
Acaued inoome and preposd egpenos 71,250 Th 25
Total Current Assets 200, 286 aa1T A2
Mim- Cuarrent Assets
e estrnoend. 1 Subad iy 3 1 1
Total Non-Current Assels ] 1
Toral Assets i TMZET  F 6617613
Liabilities and Equity
Current Lisbilties
Acorued expanses and deferred incume £ a4en  § 1E5 000
Acooicks payable 12227 107593
Amnourks payrsble b grop mdertakings & 2463 351 3,623 240
Total Current Lisb e 2,734,142 R L
Equiny
Capital and Feserves Attributable to Equity
Huodders af the Company
Share capdal (31 par value, 450,000 shares suthonzed,
420, 000 shares wawed and outstanding o 31 Mandch 420000 A0 D0
I01%and 208}
Retamed esrmings 3,567,145 2,291,724
Total Equity A 5T 1 48 2,700,738
Total Liabilitkes and Equity H T0IET F G617 518

The seremed fioles from 1 bo 8 form an anbegral part of these firancal statements

The firarcial satemerts on pages & to 17 ware spproved by weitten resclition of the Bosed of Directors on T August 2019 and
athonszed for 15ee and ngned on its behalf by

Comnpany registered menber 120932

143/192



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

KIKK D AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Note 2015 2018
Op erating Revenues
Invetment managameant and wdvisory fees from thied parties 5 2iNoEs % 28,737.5385
Total cperating reversses 2335085 23.757.335
Op erating Expenses
Subegdvisory fees with thed parties {1757 (1,383,168
Bub.advisory fees with group indertalongs & {2058 55T (25,306 3855
Audit fes 205713 (18,1821
Cther op srating and adminidratsre sipennes {161,345 (247,658
Tetal operating axpenzes (20,513,550 (27,014.3423
Operating Profic 3 L 1, 41593
Other Tiscome { (Expenses)
Other mncomeepense), Mt foregn sochonges gami(lass) (53,758 S3803
Tuotal cther epanses 53,75 63803
Proft Before Income Tax e 18048 7o
Ircoeme tax expense 4
Frofi attributakle to equity hodders of the parmt 1,765,417 105,796
Other Comprehensive Encome for the year . .
Tatal Comprehmsive lncmme for the year 5 1785417 % 1,505,796

Al the Group® s opertvons are chignfied a5 contmumng,
The arrreted robes from 1 bo @ form an ardegral part of thess foandal staternenis
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MIKEQ AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FORE THE YEAR ENDED 3] MARCH 019
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Hiue -:S: E.I:I. E;TE Toul
Ealance st 1 April 2007 - 20,000 £ 1415901 % 1,898 g
Het prod 1,005,796 1,B05, 794
Davidend pasd = 1,000,001 {1, 000000
Balance st 31 March 2008 5 80,000 22077 5 2,701,727
Het prof 1, 765417 1,765 417
Davidend paid - - -
EBalance # 31 March 2019 5 20,000 P ] 5 4.457,144

The ansieead fiobes from 1 bo & fom an nbegral part of thess franaal statesnants
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] MARCH 019
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Kot 2019 208
Carh Flowws from Operating A cuivities
Crperating Profit 1 1813215 1,741 0
Adjustiemts for
Met forergn excbunge loss (53,7585 &3,003
Operatoml cash flows befor: movememnits m workng
capital 1,75 417 1205 7o
Changes in operting asets and Bab ilicbes
Diecreass | (rpreuse) m recsvables 1,008,174 (237048 0y
(Ducrense) / moreaze m payubles Cr 12 Ta3; btk b
Nt Cash Generated from Operating A ctivities 1,656 240 LT
Cash Flows from Financing Acth ities
Dreidends pard - (1,000,000 )
Nt Cash Tron Finand ng Aoivithes - o B O8Ny
Nt I rease in Cash and Cash Eqohvalents 18R T
Cash and cash squivalents, begirning of the yar 2,282 el 1841593
Cah and Cash Equivalents, End of the Year 1 3,008 ok 2282 00

The aecieted robes from 1 bo @ form an mnbegral part of thess fnandaal staternenis
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MIKK O AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] MARCH 2019

Mote 1 - General Inform ation

Hﬂrlmmﬂ-hbﬂﬂ'lmmfﬂu {‘m]:uq,l’}lm{ £z mabsidmry (together “the Gn:.p'}me incorporated end damaaled m the
Caymean Tfdaeds The address of the registared cffice is PO B 3090T, Uglind Houss, South Chisrdh Street, Grand Cayenan,
Couyrman Elands The prevegal sctivities of the Group and Company durng the pear were the proveson of neesiment advice and
mysirnent maragarent seicet bo ted partss and olfvr grag membeas These ponedabubory fnancial staterments have been
prepared to 33 the preparstion of conselsdated fnsncal ststemets for the inbarmadiste parent compay

Hote 2 - Summary of Significant Accoanting Principles
The procipal mooounting polscees adopled xre cof ot bel ow

Fas i of prejaration

The Group and Carmpany's inencal datemenis havebeen prepeed in sccordance with Intem aticrn! Fmanca ] Reporting Standards
at adopled by the Evrcpean Unson (IFES: 4 sdopled by the EUD and IFRIC milepretabions apphicable t comparnes reporting
under IFRS. Az ot 31 biarch 2005, the Comgany had adopted all IFR.S5 wnd mberpretations that had bein isased by the Inbarational
Auceoizting Randerd: Bodnsd § LIASE") and Inbermatvidn] Findncial Repoctitg Inleprétibiond Camintbes (* TFRICT ), and endocisd
ty the EU The accounbing polscaes s o balow hare bamn applisd consistently 1o all perods presented m these fnancml
Aatemerds [FREs comgriss acoounting standands ierued by e TASE and its prodecessor body s well a5 nterprotations iesued by
the IFRIC and il predecesor body

Bask of consnlidation

ubmdiaries are entdies controdled by the Group. Costrel etists when Se Oroup b the power to g the fnancial s operating
polacies of an by o &2 bo chiaen berefits from it acbivibes. In aspesrng cvntrol, the Grogp Lakoes inbo conaideration potertal
wotzng nights thet are curently exercimble The scquintion dabe = the date an which control is trensferred tothe sogare The
frnanianl stalements of subsidmnes s irechisded in the conselidted Fnaneial stabernerte from the dabe that contred ccendmences
sl the date tha? control cesses Leosses spplicable to the non-controlling interests 0 o asbsidisry s llocated bo B non-
wonitrodhng mnbereds evan of doing mmﬁe eroneconitredlmg inderests 1o have o defict balance.

Seandards and imterpretations Esaed bt e yet efTective
IFE.E 16 Lease Accounbing i1 effective from 1 January 2019 The company has no lmses 25 there 15 no effedt of the stinderd o

The comgary

Tiew ccoant Ing standards adopied
The IASE has imswed sever] mmendments to IFREs tat are first effecte for the cament accounting persod of the company. Hooe
of these developensits hathad a matenal ampact to the corgany’ s finescial saterens

Meanurement convent on
The Gnancal staternats have bosn prepared under the hastersta | oot sanventaon

Estimvates and assumptins

The preparation of francial statements pequires manxgesmant bo malor estemabes and assumpbions that affect the amounts reported
for aspetz and linbidilzes as of the balence sheat dabe wnd the amounts reported for revmues and expenses during the year. The pahee
of estarrudyon rrvean s that sctual subcomes could duffer from those estimates. The asormpbions and estemates, which are contarmucuasly
reviewed, are based on pact exparience anvd other factors, moluding sopectations regarding likely developments o the fubee AL
31 March 207% and 2078 there were fo mabenal eﬂ:mbe:wlml'rphm

Accounis receivable

Acoourts recervabile inchude amounts due for manxgement, advisory and performance fees and smounts due fram casorners and
dibare All acooants recavabile ae repayable on damand or within o year They are pecord od i the balance sheet at codt, reduced
by wppropriabe allow inces for estinnabed wrecow erable smousts, and they wre mberest beaanng

Accounis payable

HAenizks papsble nchale smounts dus for sub-advisory seevices and performance fees and amonts dee (o vendoes and others
All wootarts payable are clasified accondmng bo the aibstance of the contractual armirgerneant endered 1nbo. They are payrable on
dermand or withm one year and are reconded on the balance sheed af cost Amounts owed bo group undestakmgs are ursecured,
miberest free and have no foed termns of repayment

Cady and eash equ bvalets
Cash ard cash equvabmbs comprese cash m benles ind 10 hund ind shor-term deposts with an origenad maturty of three months
o sz and forengn currencies held by the Group and Company. For the purposes of (b cash fow statement, cach and cash
equrilas congd of cash and cash egavalents a2 defined sbove, nt of culdtarding bl overdrafle

Opersting revenues

Coersling reveness include commarsons and inwestmient maragemnen], awvedtment adwizory and performnance fees Gpmrﬁ
retenies are menauned o e S vabie of the conmdenalion recaved or mecereable for sernices proveded m the nommal courss o

busmess, net of dizocusts, rasl fees, VAT snd offier sales relabed tumes

IFRE 15, Feversse from Corfracts with Custormers replioed TAS 18 Beverue snd mircdacsd 0 five ftap mpproach to revenoe
mnﬂm 1 idendifysng the contraect with ihe cusloemer, n}lhwfmhpuﬁmmcthgﬂmm}lm@mtmmu
{ mzsocasted revere, ) allocate the consderstion to e relevant performemee chligations; and v} recognismg the rev e as the
performrancs chligalvons are sausfied
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MIKK O AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] MARCH 2019

The Company has spplied IFRE 15 refrospedirraly, bt by ddenmined that there 15 no adustment $o the retasned esrmmngz e ot |
Agnl 2008 Comparative informabion has not been alfected and tharefors no restatenent i regquased . The Conpany has urrdertadoen
arewiew of &5 condracts with cusiomens mnd concladed that there i no smpact on the way tnwhich & recograses dsrevenaes asne
element of 15 reveniue relies on estimates or 15 aubject o rewersal or ggnificant rechbement

Cormmissions and mvestment managament xnd advisory fees and ssscciated charges are recogrised when the services concemed
arererdered Investrnent managenent and sdvatory feet are caloulabed a2 a pervertage of asoals under management Cormromion:
are rocegri pid on  ade dafe basus, caloulatbed onoa percentags of the sale Performance fees are recogrized mthe penicd @ which
ey beacorme dos and ooll eciable

Operating expenses
Crperating expenses are gocounted For when they bescome payable

Dividenads
Equity dmadends bo the shardholder of the Oreip are pecognited a2 a liabildy @ the pervod deng whads they are declared and
approved.

Forelgn currencies
Tha Banctiona] nd presendstsonal correnay of the Group and Comgeny & TF dollars (52

Trarssdions i curencest ofher than U8 dellars are recorded af the rabes of endhangs prevanlng on the dates of the ransachons
Al sach balance theet date, monelary aspets annd libililies that ase dencormanabed in forsign cusrencies are setranalated at the rabes
pewradlicg on the balincs dhest date Mon-monetiey asoets and lisbilfaes cirmed of air vahes that ase danomirated in foreign
arrendies ere tran sabed of the mtes prevading ot the dabe when fier vadue was determmed Jams end losses sreing on retramstahon
areanchided in net prolit o boss for the pemod, sncept [or exchiange differences srang on nea-monetary stz and lakalites where
the changes in fair value are recogrsed drectly @ equity

Finane lal instnamenits

FRE ¥ Financial Instrusments replaced theclassilicalion end mesnmemant contamed in 1AS 39 Finencial Ingruments: Recogniion
] Measirernent (LAS 38 In accondarios with IFRS 9, the Company”s fnancial assets have been reclasafbed st armorted cost,
far valu Beough other comgeehmsme mcome o B value through profit or loss The Comgpany has spplied [FRE 7

retrospectivaty, with the mterton of mduding sy requirsd adpistment bo metamed mmogs o of 1 Apel 2018 Cormparstire
Enfoerration bz not been restabed

The vast n'u]u'i.}l-u!'l}nf:u'rpm}l‘: Emanecial mstrumenss are cash and recevables wihisch are messored ol amortassd oo

Fuollowing the Company's sdoption of IFRE % on 1 Aprl 2018 the Cn:n';-m:,r hs evalusted potenbad aredst losses on all fmancial
Attt e Irpadined o asmeoetisad ot Factors considerad i determinany whether a defaik = Liesly or possib be inchade whather
& payrment 3 ovendue (and the bength of that period), sy knosm delanioration m e credit quality of o client'counterparty o olher
szt that could sdverealy affed a clant' sioourterparty’s cradd qualdy

Fer firancial aspets whers thare & neo bmown s affecing credit quality, expecied ared loszes are caloulabed based on the lowes
Bl e ecpeched b be incurred otter @ rolling twebreamonth parnod Green the nabire of the Company® s finandial assebs (1 & mostly
cash st bark), there &2 a very low oredit risk The Company i1 also conmdering the woe of money market funds o noreaze
diveraficatin and further reduce credit ngke

Fer any lirancinl assez whers the contractual paymment i more than 30 days past dae, the deful posiion £ (o a8 80 Blarase
mooredd nde Howerer, defmilk levels nﬂupu‘tbu.ub-nﬂ'l. emmafders] smd Hrere were no fee recereables past doe oz ot 31 Merch
208

T estmemts in subsidiaries
Investrents in subsidiarses ure sabed i the parent compaery's balance sheet ot cost less any provisions for emparment

ote 3 — Investment in Subsidiary
COMPANY

Al 31 March 200% and 31 karch 3018 the Company had an owedment of §1. In the oprmuon of the derediors, the Company's
mwastenent 15 not argaired Details of the irvestmect are az follows

Number, class nd
Conantry af percetage of shares
IR mlimporstion _ Ericalscieky
Cayman 1 Cord mary shoars
Wil i (Caryroan Lid Teligde Beéral pariner Sf%1, 100

ote 4 — Taxation

AL 3] Murch 2015 and 204 8, the Lo rale spplicable to thee Group and the Campany's profits is %4 becnse there & no bix leved
on Coayrman [shmds companzes
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MIKK O AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] MARCH 2019

Note 5 - Finmmcial Risk Faciors

The Grog ard Company"s [nancal instruments compate cash and cash squvalents and recarsble and payable balmeoss that
srese from 25 duily opemtions Al cash and cash equmvalents e camied o cost which 15 considered b0 & proximate bo fair vaboe
due 1o the short berm matursty of these Bnancal nidrments The mam ndes amociabed with the Grosp end Company's fnancml
asiats el labolilies are sl ol bejow

Credit risk

Credit nisk &5 defined as She risk of fnancil loss due'to a counbapaetys failure o honour its chligatson preicpally im relibion ko
transactions whene the Oroup or Company prosides poods o serrices on defered barms and whene & mvests or deposits naplus
azh The Group or Comgany do nct behere that they are mataraly apozed to oedit ke &3 ths mbes debbors are managed group
Bands ared theratore managerment and performancs feeg recamable ste govemed by its agreemenis with theze finds. To ratigate
wmﬁulr&nfﬂhseasﬂs[llln‘gbbfdﬂn:d.heﬂrﬂy i Company enmare that the terms of thess wiﬂ
relabion Lo payrenls of managemnent and perforenan e fees are sdliored 1o by mondlonrg 13 aged debbor ana ez agairst the agresd
service level agresments

The T ard Cornpany adopls the palicy of debing with asfomers of sppropnade aredd istory. For ofher fmandal asses, the
Group and Company sdopts tepolecy of dealing with financial mstduisons and other coxmberpuetios with high credt ratings. There
are oo Brunaal assds past due and/ or eopared as o 31 March 2019 and 2018 Trade recerrabbes ars due o |enst quacterly, and are
nirmally settled within 30 duys of ther due date There ase no ovendue wde recerrabbes at the balinoe shest date

Further, with regasd to bank deposds, the Group and Comgany only deponts mooey with spproved counterpartsss on agreed bams

Mlarket risk

Markcet rigke (or spsbermie rigk) as defined ag that risk which b cornmoen Lo an enlee dlags of szets or habilises whereby ther value
can fuctuate simply because of economis changes o other events that smpact large partions: of the market The Jrogp and
Coenparty o ok belisve that they are spoted bo rmabersal madeel ol as Bhe assets the Oroup and Company mansgs aee hald by
2l o the benafit of fund holders through separade begal entities

Currency ik

Currency nidk is defined ag the nak that e value of Group or Company azsetsand lakbalises devomanabad g aerences ot than
the funchional currency of the Group or Corpacy will change nsalue dee bo movaments 1 forag exchmnpe rabes  The Group
el Comrpary are enposed to aErensy nisk ariting from various curreney expoaaes, primanly with pespect bo the Japaness Yan
JEE), Bterling Pound (GBF) and Singepdne Dallar (330). The Group and Company”s Tee meome iz recésyed mamly m USD and
JFY. AL 31 March 2065 and 2008, had these arrencees grengihenediwenicmed by 100 agand the TRED with all other vanahles
nehading tax rabe being held constant, e Grogp and Company's profit before teg for the Brancial year would have been

lud:ﬂ:l'h'wn: msaremalt of ourency trensation |oseesipuing on the ramoinnip currency denomimfed cashbalmces, raderecevabies
avd payrib et by the balow ameounts
Cur ey e W
(Fooisvdead b0 neared § th 1]
Y 5 5,000 - =1.000
GEF 5,000 42000
23D 56,000 145,000

Liquidity risk and Mnancial sabency ik

Luquidity risk 12 defined o the mdc that the Group or Comgany will not be able bo meet ds fmancinl oblipations as they fal] due
The Group iad Compny’ s spprokch Lo managing tus ridk = bo saure that 1 has saflicent hquiddy to meet its liabidies when
due, both under noseal and stresed condibions.

Capital management
The Group snd Compey capatal ponbon 1z monitored on an ongeeng basis 1o msure thal & 5 sdequate Thers e no etamally
wrp osed cagntal requmements

Fuair Vakie of Financlal Inst raments

The far valies of fimmcsd aszets and fimncial hatalfes that ere raded m achve mackets ane based on quoted markd pnces or
i:lln'pcm@ml;im For all other financial retnaments, the Group determmies fr values usng other vahuation techmigues.

Fer firareaal metnaments that brade mirequently snd have Little peice bangarency, fur valoe s bess dhpmdtve, and regures varying
degrees of podgement depending o bguidity, conceniration, unceriainky of market fedors, prcng ssumptions snd other nzks
affecting the mecific mdrnument

The Wblebelow analyzes finarcal mstnanents, mibo o faer valiue hisrardhy based on the valustion technique used bo detenrone fair
vahue

& Level 1 quoled preces (unadiuded) m sctive mark s [oe identecal assets or lukilities

® Level 20 ingts other than quobed prices ncluded withi Level 1 that ape cbasrwable for the azset or habiliy, sither deectly
(e as prces) o indectly (Lo, deewed from prices)

@ Level 3 inguls for the aset or luabildy that are not based on obeervable malost daka (on chearvable mpuls)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] MARCH 2019

Year mded 31 March 2019 Lvel | Level 2 Ll 3 Total 2019
Ass 1 5 4 £

Cash wnd cach equiwatent EREEE o - 3938908
Accounts recevable 1,150,108 180008
A inoome and prepand eqpate 71,250 1,250
Linbilities

Acoued expense and déefermed mooms 148480 T iy
Acooants payable 124,271 124,271
Anooants paypallets o

urdertakmgs 2AEnIR 246239
Year ended 31 March 2018 Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total 2018
ASE 5 5 5 5

Cash ard cash aquesalent 2 2E3 Dby . 2 223 iy
Acooiands recawable & 28 8T el )
Aonaed needee and prepaid apante 71250 7.2%
LEbilities

Acenssd sipamces and delemed moome 165,000 165,000
HAccounts payable 167,553 100,458
Accounts payable bo group

iirdartal 34623292 3623 702

MIKK O AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
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All frunevcia] aasets and [mbalibes xre carrsed at historical cost. The faer vatues of all feancial asssts and habdities aee mimilae to
thear carymg vahees owing b ther thort bermn nathure

Mote & - Related Party Transaotions

Trnsections betwem the Group md Sompeny and related partres sre disclosed below
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MIKK O AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH X019
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Report of Independent Auditors

To CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the Trustee of Doubleline Total Return
Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Doubleline Total Return Fund (the “ Fund” ), which
comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of investments, as of February 28,
2019, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash flows and the financial
highlights for the year then ended. These financial statements and financial highlights are hereafter

collectively referred to as "financial statements".

Management’ s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Fund’ s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Doubleline Total Return Fund as of February 28, 2019, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

June 28, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (the “ Company” ) for the year ended 31
March 2019 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and the Company Statement of Financial
Position as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and related notes including
the accounting policies in note 2. The non-statutory accounts have been prepared for the reasons set out in note
1.

In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’ s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (* ISAs (UK)” ) and the terms

of our engagement letter dated 3 May 2019. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and

appropriate basis for our opinion.

The impact of uncertainties due to the UK exiting the European Union on our audit

Uncertainties related to the effects of Brexit are relevant to understanding our audit of the financial
statements. All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the directors and related
disclosures and the appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of
these depend on assessments of the future economic environment and the company®s future prospects and
performance.

Brexit is one of the most significant economic events for the UK, and at the date of this report its effects are
subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible effects unknown. We
applied a standardised firm-wide approach in response to that uncertainty when assessing the company®s future
prospects and performance. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible
future implications for a company and this is particularly the case in relation to Brexit.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory accounts on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the group or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the group and the company®s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern for at
least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts (“ the going concern period” ).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of
that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts. In our
evaluation of the directors® conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the group®s business model,
including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the group and company®s financial
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resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these

respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference
to a material uncertainty in this auditor®s report is not a guarantee that the group will continue in operation.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the director®s report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material
misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’ s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’ s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
ww . Frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.
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for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants
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Report of Independent Auditors

To CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the Trustee of Doubleline Total Return
Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Doubleline Total Return Fund (the “ Fund” ), which
comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of investments, as of February 28,
2018, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash flows and the financial
highlights for the period from March 30, 2017 (commencement of operations) through February 28, 2018. These
financial statements and financial highlights are hereafter collectively referred to as "financial statements".

Management’ s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Fund’ s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Doubleline Total Return Fund as of February 28, 2018, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the period from March 30, 2017

(commencement of operations) through February 28, 2018, in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

July 20, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (“ the company” ) for the year
ended 31 March 2018 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and the Company
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2018, the Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income,
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended, and related notes including the summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’ s affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of its loss
for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ ISAs (UK)” ) and
the terms of our engagement letter dated 2 May 2018. Our responsibilities are described below. We have
fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK
ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of
accounting is inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt over the use of that basis for a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the
non-statutory accounts. We have nothing to report in these respects.

Directors”™ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the
preparation of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory accounts that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’ s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an
auditor’ s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it

exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
www._frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It
has been released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or
disclosed, in whole (save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior
written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s
needs at the time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by
any party wishing to acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any

context. Any party other than the Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to
rely on our report (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of our report to any other party.

Michael McGarry (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

25 July 2018
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